Urbana School District #116

Urbana, Illinois

GENERAL DISTRICT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

2023-2024



Outstanding Schools in an Outstanding Community!

Jean F. Burkholder Administrative Service Center 1101 E. University Ave., Suite B Urbana, IL 61802 www.usd116.org



July 2023

Dear Parent/Guardian:

On behalf of Urbana School District #116 Board of Education, administrators, teachers, and support staff, I would like to welcome you and your children to the 2023-2024 school year! Part of our mission toward excellence is to provide students with the skills, knowledge, and character traits to develop their own personal greatness. We look forward to partnering with you to help your student reach their highest goals.

In accordance with various laws, rules, and regulations established by the State and Federal Government and the Board of Education, the Urbana School District is responsible for notifying you of several policies and procedures. For a more complete copy of all district policies and procedures, please refer to our Board Policy Manual located on our website at www.usd116.org/boe/. Please be aware that the information contained in this manual may be changed during the school year. The most current rules and policies can be found on the district website. Please continue to stay connected with us via our website, email, and social media for the most up-to-date information.

We encourage you to review this booklet with your child(ren). If you are registering online, you will acknowledge receipt of the Policy and Procedures Manual. I encourage you to download a copy to reference throughout the school year. You may also request a hard copy from your school. For new families registering for the first time in our District, please sign the form stating you have received the "General District Policies and Procedures 2023-2024" Manual.

If you have questions concerning any portion of this manual, please contact my office (384-3636), and we will assist you in finding answers.

We hope you have a wonderful school year.

Sincerely,

Dr. Jennifer Ivory-Tatum Ed.D

Superintendent

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Attendance	1
Release During School	5
Weather Related School Closings	6
Students Rights and Discipline Policy	6
Student Technology	23
Parents' Rights to Know – Title I	28
Video Surveillance	29
School Bus Information	29
Part Time Attendance	30
Student Residency	32
Student Records	33
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)	36
Student Directory Information	37
Instruction Materials	38
Special Education Programs and Services	38
Behavioral Intervention for Students with Disabilities	41
Education of Children with Disabilities – Provision of Free Appropriate Public Education	41
Identification, Assessment, and Provision of Special Education Services to Eligible	
Children Not Enrolled in the District	42
Accommodating Individuals with Disabilities	42
Home and Hospital Instruction	43
IL State Guidelines Regarding Mental Health Services for Children and Adolescents	43
Equal Educational Opportunities	44
Grading and Promotion	45
Accelerated Placement Program	45
Sexual Harassment	46
Blood Exposures	49
Health Guidelines	49
Allergy Alert Information	50
Mandatory Health Requirements for School	50
School Medication Guidelines	51
School Fees	55
Student Fees Policy	55
Homeless Students	57
Facilities Services	58
Asbestos Hazard Response	59
Volunteer Information	60
Visitors to School and Conduct on School Property	61
Child Abuse – Mandated Reporters	64
Sex Offender Registration Act	64
Highly Qualified Certified and Non-Certified Staff	64
Forms to Review Annually	64
Publicity and Photo Release Form	65
Internet Acceptable Use Form	66
Bus Rules and Expectations	67
School Calendar	69

ATTENDANCE

The following guidelines, procedures, and definitions have been developed to deal with excused and unexcused absences. Adjustments were made to insure conformity with the Compulsory Attendance Article as amended in the State of Illinois School Code, the revised guidelines issued by the Illinois Office of Education, and the attendance policy of District #116. These policies and guidelines apply to all levels of K-12.

The current policy of Urbana School District #116 states the following:

The acceptable reasons for absence are illness of the student or illness in their immediate family, family emergency, observance of religious holidays, death in the immediate family, and such situations beyond the control of the student. If a child is not well, they should stay at home for their own sake and in consideration of their classmates. When it is necessary for a student to be absent, the parents/guardians are required to call the attendance office on the first day of absence. Students who are out of school because of illness may be requested to present a medical excuse upon their return to school.

If it is necessary for a student to be absent for reasons other than illness, a parent's/guardian's written request may be accepted by school authorities as a justifiable reason for an absence. At such times, the written request must be submitted prior to the absence.

When a student wishes to be excused from school for reasons other than the above, the parent/guardian must call to explain the reason for the proposed absence. The principal will give approval if the reason for the absence is valid.

General Guidelines:

- 1. All absences, except absences due to personal illness or death in the immediate family as defined in the policy, are to be recorded and treated as unexcused unless approval for the absence is obtained prior to its occurrence. Procedures for requesting that an absence be classified as excused are outlined in numbers two through four following.
- 2. Requests for classifying an anticipated absence as excused must be filed with the building principal at least five (5) school days prior to the absence.
- 3. The request must be filed in writing using the approved form designed for the purpose. The request filed using this form is not complete without a parental signature, teachers' signatures, and an administrative signature. Forms for filing this request are available in all school offices.
- 4. Upon receipt of the request, the principal will classify the anticipated absence as either "approved" or "unapproved". The criteria for making this determination will include the following: recommendations from teachers, previous attendance record, and reasons(s) for the anticipated absence. Notification of the classification will be sent to the parent and teachers involved prior to the anticipated absence.
- 5. Primarily for secondary students, work missed as a result of an excused absence may be made up for credit; work missed as a result of an unexcused absence may not be made up and will result in a "O" for the day(s) missed. Work made up from an excused absence must be completed immediately after returning to school. The student will be allowed one day to make up work for each day of excused absence unless other previous arrangements have been made with the teacher.

Procedures for Reporting Excused Absence:

When a student is absent because of illness, observance of a religious holiday, death in the immediate family, or an emergency in the immediate family, as defined in the school policy, these procedures are to be followed:

The parent or guardian is to call the school attendance office (principal's office in schools other than the middle school and high school) on the morning of the first day of the absence. The parent is to indicate the reason for the absence and the estimated duration of the absence. In special cases where absence is over an extended time or is frequent, the principal may request reasons in writing from the parent and/or a statement from a physician.

- Attendance Office, Urbana Middle School, 384-3688
- Attendance Office, Urbana High School, 384-3522
- King, 384-3675
- Leal, 384-3618
- Dr. Preston L. Williams Jr., 384-3628
- Thomas Paine, 384-3572
- Yankee Ridge, 384-3608
- Urbana Early Childhood School, 384-3616

All absences, regardless of reason, that are not reported by phone will be recorded as unexcused. Written statements are also accepted at all buildings except Urbana High School. At Urbana High School, telephone calls must be made between 7:15 a.m. - 4:15 p.m. on the day of the absence, or the absence will be considered unexcused

Excessive Absences:

The maximum number of excused absences allowed in a semester is eight (8). Parents may request that an absence be excused for the following reasons: personal illness, family illness, medical/dental appointments, religious holidays, and funerals. Building administration has the final authority to determine whether or not an absence will be excused.

Once a student has accumulated eight absences per semester, any additional absence will be considered unexcused and handled as an unexcused absence. Excluded from this policy shall be absences which are verified by a doctor's statement. The doctor's statement must be an original copy signed by a licensed medical professional. It must include the date(s) of the student's relevant absence(s). Students exceeding five (5) unexcused absences per semester will be reported to the Regional Superintendent as chronically truant.

Continued patterns of excessive excused or unexcused absences may result in a parent meeting with the school's Student Engagement Advocate, Attendance Review Team, referral to the Regional Office of Education Truancy Officer and/or a referral to the Champaign County State's Attorney.

Truancy:

Truancy is defined as unexcused absence for any school day or portion thereof.

Habitual or chronic truancy is defined as unexcused absences totaling 5% or more of the previous 180 regular attendance days. Notification will be given to parents prior to student absence reaching the 5% level.

Schools will utilize supportive services and other school resources in an attempt to correct the truant behavior of students who are approaching a chronic truancy classification.

If the positive measures provided by the school fail to correct the behavior of a student, a chronic truancy report will be made to the Truant Officer at the Regional Office of Education, who will take appropriate action against the parents or the student, whichever is indicated by the situation.

BP 7:70 Attendance and Truancy

7:70 Attendance and Truancy

Compulsory School Attendance

This policy applies to individuals who have custody or control of a child: (a) between the ages of six (on or before September 1) and 17 years (unless the child has graduated from high school), or (b) who is enrolled in any of grades kindergarten through 12 in the public school regardless of age. Subject to specific requirements in State law, the following children are not required to attend public school: (1) any child attending a private school (including a home school) or parochial school, (2) any child who is physically or mentally unable to attend school (including a pregnant student suffering medical complications as certified by her physician), (3) any child lawfully and necessarily employed, (4) any child over 12 and under 14 years of age while in confirmation classes, (5) any child absent because of religious reasons, including to observe a religious holiday, for religious instruction, or because his or her religion forbids secular activity on a particular day(s) or time of day, and (6) any child 16 years of age or older who is employed and is enrolled in a graduation incentives program.

The parent/guardian of a student who is enrolled must authorize all absences from school and notify the school in advance or at the time of the student's absence. A valid cause for absence includes illness (including mental or behavioral health of the student), observance of a religious holiday, death in the immediate family, attendance at a civic event, family emergency, other situations beyond the control of the student as determined by the Board, voting pursuant to policy 7:90, *Release During School Hours* (10 ILCS 5/7-42 and 5/17-15), other circumstances that cause reasonable concern to the parent/guardian for the student's mental, emotional, or physical health or safety, or other reason as approved by the Superintendent or designee. Students absent for a valid cause may make up missed homework and classwork assignments in a reasonable timeframe.

Absenteeism and Truancy Program

The Superintendent or designee shall manage an absenteeism and truancy program in accordance with the School Code and Board of Education policy. The program shall include but not be limited to:

- 1. A protocol for excusing a student from attendance who is necessarily and lawfully employed. The Superintendent or designee is authorized to determine when the student's absence is justified.
- 2. A protocol for excusing a student in grades 6 through 12 from attendance to sound *Taps* at a military honors funeral held in Illinois for a deceased veteran.
- 3. A protocol for excusing a student from attendance on a particular day(s) or at a particular time of day when their parent/guardian is an active duty member of the uniformed services and has been called to duty for, is on leave from, or has immediately returned from deployment to a combat zone or combat-support postings.
- 4. A process to telephone, within two hours after the first class, the parents/guardians of

- students in grade 8 or below who are absent without prior parent/guardian notification.
- 5. A process to identify and track students who are truants, chronic or habitual truants, or truant minors as defined in 105 ILCS 5/26-2a.
- 6. A description of diagnostic procedures for identifying the cause(s) of a student's unexcused absenteeism, including interviews with the student, his or her parent(s)/guardian(s), and staff members or other people who may have information about the reasons for the student's attendance problem.
- 7. The identification of supportive services that may be offered to truant, chronically truant, or chronically absent students, including parent-teacher conferences, student and/or family counseling, or information about community agency services. See Board policy 6:110, *Programs for Students At Risk of Academic Failure and/or Dropping Out of School and Graduation Incentives Program*.
- 8. A process for the collection and review of chronic absence data and to:
 - a. Determine what systems of support and resources are needed to engage chronically absent students and their families, and
 - b. Encourage the habit of daily attendance and promote success.
- 9. Reasonable efforts to provide ongoing professional development to teachers, administrators, Board members, school resource officers, and staff on the appropriate and available supportive services for the promotion of student attendance and engagement.
- 10. A process to request the assistance and resources of outside agencies, such as, the juvenile officer of the local police department or the truant office of the appropriate Regional Office of Education, if truancy continues after supportive services have been offered.
- 11. A protocol for cooperating with non-District agencies including County or municipal authorities, the Regional Superintendent, truant officers, the Community Truancy Review Board, and a comprehensive community based youth service agency. Any disclosure of school student records must be consistent with Board policy 7:340, *Student Records*, as well as State and federal law concerning school student records.
- 12. An acknowledgement that no punitive action, including out-of-school suspensions, expulsions, or court action, shall be taken against a truant minor for his or her truancy unless available supportive services and other school resources have been provided to the student.
- 13. The criteria to determine whether a student's non-attendance is due to extraordinary circumstances shall include economic or medical necessity or family hardship and such other criteria that the Superintendent believes qualifies.
- 14. A process for a 17 year old resident to participate in the District's various programs and resources for truants. The student must provide documentation of their dropout status for the previous six months. A request from an individual 19 years of age or older to re-enroll after having dropped out of school is handled according to provisions in 7:50, *School Admissions and Student Transfers To and From Non-District Schools*.
- 15. A process for the temporary exclusion of a student 17 years of age or older for failing to meet minimum attendance standards according to provisions in State law. A parent/guardian has the right to appeal a decision to exclude a student.

Monitoring

Pursuant to State law and policy 2:240, *Board Policy Development*, the Board updates this policy at least once every two years. The Superintendent or designee shall assist the Board with its update.

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/22-92 and 5/26-1 through 18.

705 ILCS 405/3-33.5, Juvenile Court Act of 1987.

23 Ill.Admin.Code §§1.242 and 1.290.

CROSS REF.: 5:100 (Staff Development Program), 6:110 (Programs for Students At Risk of Academic Failure and/or Dropping Out of School and Graduation Incentives Program), 6:150 (Home and Hospital Instruction), 7:10 (Equal Educational Opportunities), 7:50 (School Admissions and Student Transfers To and From Non-District Schools), 7:60 (Residence), 7:80 (Release Time for Religious Instruction/Observance), 7:90 (Release During School Hours), 7:190 (Student Behavior), 7:340 (Student Records)

Adopted: March 21, 2023

RELEASE DURING SCHOOL

BP 7:90 Release During School Hours

For safety and security reasons, a prior written or oral consent of a student's custodial parent/guardian is required before a student is released during school hours: (1) at any time before the regular dismissal time or at any time before school is otherwise officially closed, and/or (2) to any person other than a custodial parent/guardian.

Early Dismissal Announcement

The Superintendent or designee shall make reasonable efforts to issue an announcement whenever it is necessary to close school early due to inclement weather or other reason.

Voting

The Superintendent or designee shall specify the hours during which students who are entitled to vote at a primary, general, or special election, or any election at which propositions are submitted to a popular vote in Illinois, may be absent from school for a period of two hours to vote. Students are entitled to be absent from school to vote beginning the 15th day before the primary, general, or special election, or any election at which propositions are submitted to a popular vote in Illinois, or on the day of such election.

LEGAL REF.:

<u>10 ILCS 5/7-42(b)</u> and <u>5/17-15(b)</u>, Election Code.

CROSS REF.: 4:170 (Safety) Adopted: June 16, 2020

WEATHER-RELATED SCHOOL CLOSINGS

If weather conditions become severe, due to snow, ice, heat, etc., parents are advised to check any of the following locations for busing information, early dismissals and school closings. Decisions are based on the safety of the students. The district may also use the Skylert phone/text/email system to notify parents. You may select your notification settings through Skyward Family Access.

Notification will be made using:

The USD116 Twitter account @Urbana116 The USD116 Facebook page @USD116 Our website www.usd116.org Online at www.news-gazette.com

<u>Listen to radio stations:</u> <u>Watch on TV:</u>

WDWS/WHMS WCIA
WIXY/WLRW (Illinois Radio) FOX News
WQQB/WEBX/WMYE/WGKC (CU Radio Group) WAND

WILL

STUDENTS RIGHTS AND DISCIPLINE POLICY

BP 7:130 Student Rights and Responsibilities

All students are entitled to enjoy the rights protected by the <u>U.S.</u> and <u>Illinois Constitutions</u> and laws for persons of their age and maturity in a school setting. Students should exercise these rights reasonably and avoid violating the rights of others. Students who violate the rights of others or violate District policies or rules will be subject to disciplinary measures.

Students may, during the school day, during noninstructional time, voluntarily engage in individually or collectively initiated, non-disruptive prayer or religious-based meetings that, consistent with the Free Exercise and Establishment Clauses of the U.S. and Illinois Constitutions, are not sponsored, promoted, or endorsed in any manner by the school or any school employee. *Noninstructional time* means time set aside by a school before actual classroom instruction begins or after actual classroom instruction ends.

LEGAL REF.:

20 U.S.C. §7904.

105 ILCS 20/5.

Tinker v. Des Moines Independent School District, 89 S.Ct. 733 (1969).

CROSS REF.: 7:140 (Search and Seizure), 7:150 (Agency and Police Interviews), 7:160 (Student

Appearance), 7:190 (Student Behavior), 7:330 (Student Use of Buildings - Equal

Access)

Adopted: June 16, 2020

BP 7:140 Search and Seizure

In order to maintain order and security in the schools, school authorities are authorized to conduct reasonable searches of school property and equipment, as well as of students and their personal effects. "School authorities" includes school liaison police officers.

School Property and Equipment as well as Personal Effects Left There by Students

School authorities may inspect and search school property and equipment owned or controlled by the school (such as lockers, desks, and parking lots), as well as personal effects left there by a student, without notice to or the consent of the student. Students have no reasonable expectation of privacy in these places or areas or in their personal effects left there. This paragraph applies to student vehicles parked on school property. In addition, Building Principals shall require each high school student, in return for the privilege of parking on school property, to consent in writing to school searches of his or her vehicle, and personal effects therein, without notice and without suspicion of wrongdoing.

The Superintendent may request the assistance of law enforcement officials to conduct inspections and searches of lockers, desks, parking lots, and other school property and equipment for illegal drugs, weapons, or other illegal or dangerous substances or materials, including searches conducted through the use of specially trained dogs.

Students

School authorities may search a student and/or the student's personal effects in the student's possession (such as, purses, wallets, knapsacks, book bags, lunch boxes, etc.) when there is a reasonable ground for suspecting that the search will produce evidence the particular student has violated or is violating either the law or the District's student conduct rules. The search itself must be conducted in a manner that is reasonably related to its objective and not excessively intrusive in light of the student's age and sex, and the nature of the infraction.

When feasible, the search should be conducted as follows:

- 1. Outside the view of others, including students,
- 2. In the presence of a school administrator or adult witness, and
- 3. By a certificated employee or liaison police officer of the same sex as the student.

Immediately following a search, a written report shall be made by the school authority who conducted the search, and given to the Superintendent.

Seizure of Property

If a search produces evidence that the student has violated or is violating either the law or the District's policies or rules, such evidence may be seized and impounded by school authorities, and disciplinary action may be taken. When appropriate, such evidence may be transferred to law enforcement authorities.

Notification Regarding Student Accounts or Profiles on Social Networking Websites

The Superintendent or designee shall notify students and their parents/guardians of each of the following in accordance with the Right to Privacy in the School Setting Act, 105 ILCS 75/:

1. School officials may not request or require a student or his or her parent/guardian to provide a password or other related account information to gain access to the student's account or profile on a social networking website.

2. School officials may conduct an investigation or require a student to cooperate in an investigation if there is specific information about activity on the student's account on a social networking website that violates a school disciplinary rule or policy. In the course of an investigation, the student may be required to share the content that is reported in order to allow school officials to make a factual determination.

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/10-20.14, 5/10-22.6, and 5/10-22.10a.

Right to Privacy in the School Setting Act, 105 ILCS 75/.

Cornfield v. Consolidated High School Dist. No. 230, 991 F.2d 1316 (7th Cir. 1993).

People v. Dilworth, 169 III.2d 195 (1996), cert. denied, 116 S.Ct. 1692 (1996).

People v. Pruitt, 278 Ill.App.3d 194 (1st Dist. 1996), app. denied, 667 N.E. 2d 1061 (Ill.App.1, 1996).

T.L.O. v. New Jersey, 469 U.S. 325 (1985).

Vernonia School Dist. 47J v. Acton, 515 U.S. 646 (1995).

Safford Unified School Dist. No. 1 v. Redding, 557 U.S. 364 (2009).

CROSS REF.: 7:130 (Student Rights and Responsibilities), 7:150 (Agency and Police Interviews), 7:190

(Student Behavior)

Adopted: March 9, 2021

BP 7:150 Agency and Police Interviews

The Superintendent shall develop procedures to manage requests by agency officials or police officers to interview students at school. Procedures will:

- 1. Recognize individual student rights and privacy,
- 2. Recognize the potential impact an interview may have on an individual student,
- 3. Minimize potential disruption,
- 4. Foster a cooperative relationship with public agencies and law enforcement, and
- 5. Comply with State law including, but not limited to, ensuring that before a law enforcement officer, school resource officer, or other school security person detains and questions on school grounds a student under 18 years of age who is suspected of committing a criminal act, the Superintendent or designee will:
 - a. Notify or attempt to notify the student's parent/guardian and document the time and manner in writing;
 - b. Make reasonable efforts to ensure the student's parent/guardian is present during questioning or, if they are not present, ensure that school employees (including, but not limited to, a school social worker, psychologist, nurse, counselor, or any other mental health professional) are present during the questioning; and
 - c. If practicable, make reasonable efforts to ensure a trained law enforcement officer to promote safe interactions and communications with the student is present during questioning.

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/10-20.64, 5/22-88.

55 ILCS 80/, Children's Advocacy Center Act.

325 ILCS 5/, Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act.

720 ILCS 5/31-1et seq., Interference with Public Officers Act.

725 ILCS 120/, Rights of Crime Victims and Witnesses Act.

CROSS REF.: 5:90 (Abused and Neglected Child Reporting), 7:130 (Student Rights and

Responsibilities), 7:140 (Search and Seizure), 7:190 (Student Behavior)

Adopted: March 8, 2022

BP 7:160 Student Appearance

A student's appearance, including dress and hygiene, must not disrupt the educational process or compromise standards of health and safety. The District does not prohibit hairstyles or hair textures historically associated with race, ethnicity, hair texture, or any other protected classes under Board policy 7:10, *Equal Educational Opportunities*, including, but not limited to, protective hairstyles such as braids, locks, and twists. Students who disrupt the educational process or compromise standards of health and safety must modify their appearance. Procedures for guiding student appearance will be developed by the Superintendent or designee and included in the *Student Handbook(s)*.

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/2-3.25and 5/10-22.25b.

Tinker v. Des Moines Indep. Sch. Dist., 393 U.S. 503 (1969).

CROSS REF.: 7:10 (Equal Educational Opportunities), 7:130 (Student Rights and Responsibilities),

7:190 (Student Behavior) Adopted: March 8, 2022

BP 7:170 Vandalism

The School Board may seek restitution from students and their parents/guardians for vandalism or other student acts that cause damage to school property.

LEGAL REF.:

740 ILCS 115/1 et seq.

CROSS REF.: 7:130 (Student Rights and Responsibilities), 7:190 (Student Behavior)

ADOPTED: October 1, 2019

BP 7:180 Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment

7:180 Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment

Bullying, intimidation, and harassment diminish a student's ability to learn and a school's ability to educate. Preventing students from engaging in these disruptive behaviors and providing all students equal access to a safe, non-hostile learning environment are important District goals.

Bullying on the basis of actual or perceived race, color, national origin, military status, unfavorable discharge status from the military service, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender-related identity or expression, ancestry, age, religion, physical or mental disability, order of protection status, status of being homeless, or actual or potential marital or parental status, including pregnancy, association with a person or group with one or more of the aforementioned actual or perceived characteristics, or any other distinguishing characteristic **is prohibited** in each of the following situations:

- 1. During any school-sponsored education program or activity.
- 2. While in school, on school property, on school buses or other school vehicles, at designated school bus stops waiting for the school bus, or at school-sponsored or school-sanctioned events or activities.
- 3. Through the transmission of information from a school computer, a school computer network, or other similar electronic school equipment.

4. Through the transmission of information from a computer that is accessed at a nonschool-related location, activity, function, or program or from the use of technology or an electronic device that is not owned, leased, or used by a school district or school if the bullying causes a substantial disruption to the educational process or orderly operation of a school. This item (4) applies only in cases in which a school administrator or teacher receives a report that bullying through this means has occurred and it does not require a district or school to staff or monitor any nonschool-related activity, function, or program.

Definitions from 105 ILCS 5/27-23.7

Bullying includes *cyberbullying* and means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including communications made in writing or electronically, directed toward a student or students that has or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:

- 1. Placing the student or students in reasonable fear of harm to the student's or students' person or property;
- 2. Causing a substantially detrimental effect on the student's or students' physical or mental health:
- 3. Substantially interfering with the student's or students' academic performance; or
- 4. Substantially interfering with the student's or students' ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by a school.

Bullying may take various forms, including without limitation one or more of the following: harassment, threats, intimidation, stalking, physical violence, sexual harassment, sexual violence, theft, public humiliation, destruction of property, or retaliation for asserting or alleging an act of bullying. This list is meant to be illustrative and non-exhaustive.

Cyberbullying means bullying through the use of technology or any electronic communication, including without limitation any transfer of signs, signals, writing, images, sounds, data, or intelligence of any nature transmitted in whole or in part by a wire, radio, electromagnetic system, photo-electronic system, or photo-optical system, including without limitation electronic mail, Internet communications, instant messages, or facsimile communications. Cyberbullying includes the creation of a webpage or weblog in which the creator assumes the identity of another person or the knowing impersonation of another person as the author of posted content or messages if the creation or impersonation creates any of the effects enumerated in the definition of bullying. Cyberbullying also includes the distribution by electronic means of a communication to more than one person or the posting of material on an electronic medium that may be accessed by one or more persons if the distribution or posting creates any of the effects enumerated in the definition of bullying.

Restorative measures means a continuum of school-based alternatives to exclusionary discipline, such as suspensions and expulsions, that: (i) are adapted to the particular needs of the school and community, (ii) contribute to maintaining school safety, (iii) protect the integrity of a positive and productive learning climate, (iv) teach students the personal and interpersonal skills they will need to be successful in school and society, (v) serve to build and restore relationships among students, families, schools, and communities, (vi) reduce the likelihood of future disruption by balancing accountability with an understanding of students' behavioral health needs in order to keep students in school, and (vii) increase student accountability if the incident of bullying is based on religion, race, ethnicity, or any other category that is identified in the III. Human Rights Act.

School personnel means persons employed by, on contract with, or who volunteer in a school district, including without limitation school and school district administrators, teachers, school social workers, school counselors, school psychologists, school nurses, cafeteria workers, custodians, bus drivers, school resource officers, and security guards.

Bullying Prevention and Response Plan

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and maintain a bullying prevention and response plan that advances the District's goal of providing all students with a safe learning environment free of bullying and harassment. This plan must be consistent with the following requirements:

- 1. Using the definition of *bullying* as provided in this policy, the Superintendent or designee shall emphasize to the school community that: (1) the District prohibits bullying, and (2) all students should conduct themselves with a proper regard for the rights and welfare of other students. This may include a process for commending or acknowledging students for demonstrating appropriate behavior.
- 2. Bullying is contrary to State law and the policy of this District. However, nothing in the District's bullying prevention and response plan is intended to infringe upon any right to exercise free expression or the free exercise of religion or religiously based views protected under the <u>First Amendment to the U.S. Constitution</u> or under <u>Section 3 of Article I of the Illinois Constitution</u>.
- 3. Students are encouraged to immediately report bullying. A report may be made orally or in writing to the Nondiscrimination Coordinator, Building Principal, Assistant Building Principal, Student Interventionist, a Complaint Manager, or any staff member with whom the student is comfortable speaking. Anyone, including staff members and parents/guardians, who has information about actual or threatened bullying is encouraged to report it to the District named officials or any staff member. The District named officials and all staff members are available for help with a bully or to make a report about bullying. Anonymous reports are also accepted; however, this shall not be construed to permit formal disciplinary action solely on the basis of an anonymous report.

Nondiscrimination Coordinator: Dr. Angi Franklin, Asst Supt of Human Resources

1101 East University Ave., Suite B

Urbana, IL 61802 afranklin@usd116.org

217-384-3641

Complaint Managers: Angi Franklin, Asst Supt of Human Resources

1101 East University Ave., Suite B

Urbana, IL 61802 afranklin@usd116.org

217-384-3641

Dr. Kimberly Norton, Asst Supt of Student

Learning

1101 East University Ave., Suite B

Urbana, IL 61802 knorton@usd116.org

217-384-3651

Complaint Managers Cont'd:

Michelle Turner, Principal M.L.King Elementary

1108 Fairview, Urbana, IL 61801

rturner@usd116.org 217-384-3675

Danielle Jackson, Principal
Dr. Preston L. Williams Jr. Elementary
2102 Fact Washington St. Unbane H. (18)

dmjackson@usd116.org

217-384-3628

Adriana Ochoa, Principal

Leal Elementary

312 West Oregon, Urbana, IL 61801

<u>aochoa@usd116.org</u> 217-384-3618

Andrea Jackson, Principal Thomas Paine Elementary

2102 East Washington St. Urbana, IL 61802 1801 James Cherry, Urbana, IL 61802

ajackson@usd116.org

217-384-3602

Wiley - Closed during the 23-24 (Abatement)

Jennifer Heinhorst, Principal W Urbana Early Childhood School 2202 West Washington St., Urbana, IL 61802 jheinhorst@usd116.org 217-384-3616

Sima Thurman, Principal Derrick Cooper, Principal Yankee Ridge Elementary Urbana Middle School 2102 South Anderson St., Urbana, IL 61801 1201 South Vine St., Urbana, IL 61801

2102 South Anderson St., Orbana, 12 01001 1201 South Vine St., 010

sthurman@usd116.org dcooper@usd116.org

217-384-3607 217-384-3685

Jesse Guzman, Principal Urbana High School 1002 South Race St., Urbana, IL 61801 jeguzman@usd116.org

- 4. Consistent with federal and State laws and rules governing student privacy rights, the Superintendent or designee shall promptly inform parent(s)/guardian(s) of all students involved in an alleged incident of bullying and discuss, as appropriate, the availability of social work services, counseling, school psychological services, other interventions, and restorative measures.
- 5. The Superintendent or designee shall promptly investigate and address reports of bullying, by, among other things:
 - a. Making all reasonable efforts to complete the investigation within 10 school days after the date the report of the incident of bullying was received and taking into consideration additional relevant information received during the course of the investigation about the reported incident of bullying.
 - b. Involving appropriate school support personnel and other staff persons with knowledge, experience, and training on bullying prevention, as deemed appropriate, in the investigation process.
 - c. Notifying the Building Principal or school administrator or designee of the report of the incident of bullying as soon as possible after the report is received.
 - d. Consistent with federal and State laws and rules governing student privacy rights,

providing parents and guardians of the students who are parties to the investigation information about the investigation and an opportunity to meet with the principal or school administrator or his or her designee to discuss the investigation, the findings of the investigation, and the actions taken to address the reported incident of bullying.

The Superintendent or designee shall investigate whether a reported act of bullying is within the permissible scope of the District's jurisdiction and shall require that the District provide the victim with information regarding services that are available within the District and community, such as counseling, support services, and other programs.

- 6. The Superintendent or designee shall use interventions to address bullying, which may include, but are not limited to, school social work services, restorative measures, social-emotional skill building, counseling, school psychological services, and community-based services.
- 7. A reprisal or retaliation against any person who reports an act of bullying **is prohibited**. Any person's act of reprisal or retaliation will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge with regard to employees, or suspension and/or expulsion with regard to students.
- 8. A student will not be punished for reporting bullying or supplying information, even if the District's investigation concludes that no bullying occurred. However, a person who is found to have falsely accused another of bullying, as a means of retaliation, as a means of bullying, or provided false information will be treated as either: (a) *bullying*, (b) student discipline up to and including suspension and/or expulsion, and/or (c) both (a) and (b) for purposes of determining any consequences or other appropriate remedial actions.
- 9. The District's bullying prevention and response plan is based on the engagement of a range of school stakeholders, including students and parents/guardians.
- 10. The Superintendent or designee shall post this policy on the District's website, if any, and include it in the student handbook, and, where applicable, post it where other policies, rules, and standards of conduct are currently posted. The policy must be distributed annually to parents/guardians, students, and school personnel (including new employees when hired), and must also be provided periodically throughout the school year to students and faculty.
- 11. Pursuant to State law and policy 2:240, *Board Policy Development*, the Board monitors this policy every two years by conducting a review and re-evaluation of this policy to make any necessary and appropriate revisions. The Superintendent or designee shall assist the Board with its re-evaluation and assessment of this policy's outcomes and effectiveness. Updates to this policy will reflect any necessary and appropriate revisions. This process shall include, without limitation:
 - a. The frequency of victimization;
 - b. Student, staff, and family observations of safety at a school;
 - c. Identification of areas of a school where bullying occurs;
 - d. The types of bullying utilized; and
 - e. Bystander intervention or participation.

The evaluation process may use relevant data and information that the District already collects for other purposes. Acceptable documentation to satisfy the re-evaluated policy submission include one of the following:

- 1) An updated version of the policy with the amendment/modification date included in the reference portion of the policy;
- 2) If no revisions are deemed necessary, a copy of board minutes indicating that the policy was re-evaluated and no changes were deemed to be necessary; or
- 3) A signed statement from the Board President indicating that the Board re-evaluated the policy and no changes to it were necessary.

The Superintendent or designee must post the information developed as a result of the policy re-evaluation on the District's website, or if a website is not available, the information must be provided to school administrators, Board members, school personnel, parents/guardians, and students. Reviews and re-evaluations in years they are due must be submitted to ISBE by September 30.

12. The District's bullying prevention plan must be consistent with other Board policies.

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/10-20.14, 5/10-22.6(b-20), 5/24-24, and 5/27-23.7.

405 ILCS 49/, Children's Mental Health Act.

775 ILCS 5/1-103, Ill. Human Rights Act.

23 Ill.Admin.Code §§1.240, 1.280, and 1.295.

CROSS REF.: 2:240 (Board Policy Development), 2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 2:265 (Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure), 4:170 (Safety), 5:230 (Maintaining Student Discipline), 6:60 (Curriculum Content), 6:65 (Student Social and Emotional Development), 6:235 (Access to Electronic Networks), 7:20 (Harassment of Students Prohibited), 7:185 (Teen Dating Violence Prohibited), 7:190 (Student Behavior), 7:220 (Bus Conduct), 7:230 (Misconduct by Students with Disabilities), 7:240 (Conduct Code for Participants in Extracurricular Activities), 7:285 (Anaphylaxis Prevention, Response, and Management Program), 7:310 (Restrictions on Publications; Elementary Schools), 7:315 (Restrictions on Publications; High Schools)

Adopted: March 21, 2023

BP 7:185 Teen Dating Violence Prohibited

Each student has a right to a safe learning environment. Engaging in teen dating violence that takes place at school, on school property, at school-sponsored activities, or in vehicles used for school-provided transportation is prohibited. For purposes of this policy, the term *teen dating violence* occurs whenever a student who is 13 to 19 years of age uses or threatens to use physical, mental, or emotional abuse to control an individual in the dating relationship; or uses or threatens to use sexual violence in the dating relationship.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and maintain a program to respond to incidents of teen dating violence that:

- 1. Fully implements and enforces each of the following Board policies:
 - a. 2:260, *Uniform Grievance Procedure*. This policy provides a method for any student, parent/guardian, employee, or community member to file a complaint if he or she believes that the School Board, its employees, or its agents have violated his or her rights

- under the State or federal Constitution, State or federal statute, Board policy, or various enumerated bases.
- b. 2:265, *Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure*. This policy prohibits any person from engaging in sexual harassment in violation of Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972. Prohibited conduct includes but is not limited to sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, and stalking.
- c. 7:20, *Harassment of Students Prohibited*. This policy prohibits any person from harassing intimidating, or bullying a student based on the student's actual or perceived characteristics of sex; sexual orientation; gender identity; and gender-related identity or expression (this policy includes more protected statuses).
- d. 7:180, *Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment*. This policy prohibits students from engaging in bullying, intimidation, and harassment at school, school-related events and electronically. Prohibited conduct includes threats, stalking, physical violence, sexual harassment, sexual violence, theft, public humiliation, destruction of property, or retaliation for asserting or alleging an act of bullying.
- 2. Encourages anyone with information about incidents of teen dating violence to report them to any of the following individuals:
 - a. Any school staff member. School staff shall respond to incidents of teen dating violence by following the District's established procedures for the prevention, identification, investigation, and response to bullying and school violence.
 - b. The Nondiscrimination Coordinator, Building Principal, Assistant Building Principal, Dean of Students, or a Complaint Manager identified in policy 7:20, *Harassment of Students Prohibited*.
- 3. Incorporates age-appropriate instruction in grades 7 through 12, in accordance with the District's comprehensive health education program in Board policy 6:60, *Curriculum Content*. This includes incorporating student social and emotional development into the District's educational program as required by State law and in alignment with Board policy 6:65, *Student Social and Emotional Development*.
- 4. Incorporates education for school staff, as recommended by the Nondiscrimination Coordinator, Building Principal, Assistant Building Principal, Dean of Students, or a Complaint Manager.
- 5. Notifies students and parents/guardians of this policy.

Incorporated

by Reference: 7:180-AP1, (Prevention, Identification, Investigation, and Response to Bullying)

LEGAL REF.: <u>105 ILCS 110/3.10</u>.

CROSS REF.: 2:240 (Board Policy Development), 2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 2:265 (Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure), 5:100 (Staff Development Program), 5:230 (Maintaining Student Discipline), 6:60 (Curriculum Content), 6:65 (Student Social and Emotional Development), 7:20 (Harassment of Students Prohibited), 7:180 (Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment), 7:190 (Student Behavior), 7:220 (Bus Conduct), 7:230 (Misconduct by Students with Disabilities), 7:240 (Conduct Code for Participants in Extracurricular Activities) ADOPTED: November 17, 2020

BP 7:190 Student Behavior

The goals and objectives of this policy are to provide effective discipline practices that: (1) ensure the safety and dignity of students and staff; (2) maintain a positive, weapons-free, and drug-free learning environment; (3) keep school property and the property of others secure; (4) address the causes of a student's misbehavior and provide opportunities for all individuals involved in an incident to participate

in its resolution; and (5) teach students positive behavioral skills to become independent, self-disciplined citizens in the school community and society.

When and Where Conduct Rules Apply

A student is subject to disciplinary action for engaging in *prohibited student conduct*, as described in the section with that name below, whenever the student's conduct is reasonably related to school or school activities, including, but not limited to:

- 1. On, or within sight of, school grounds before, during, or after school hours or at any time;
- 2. Off school grounds at a school-sponsored activity or event, or any activity or event that bears a reasonable relationship to school;
- 3. Traveling to or from school or a school activity, function, or event; or
- 4. Anywhere, if the conduct interferes with, disrupts, or adversely affects the school environment, school operations, or an educational function, including, but not limited to, conduct that may reasonably be considered to: (a) be a threat or an attempted intimidation of a staff member; or (b) endanger the health or safety of students, staff, or school property.

Prohibited Student Conduct

The school administration is authorized to discipline students for gross disobedience or misconduct, including but not limited to:

- 1. Using, possessing, distributing, purchasing, or selling tobacco or nicotine materials, including without limitation, electronic cigarettes.
- 2. Using, possessing, distributing, purchasing, or selling alcoholic beverages. Students who are under the influence of an alcoholic beverage are not permitted to attend school or school functions and are treated as though they had alcohol in their possession.
- 3. Using, possessing, distributing, purchasing, selling, or offering for sale:
 - a. Any illegal drug or controlled substance, or cannabis (including marijuana, hashish, and medical cannabis unless the student is authorized to be administered a medical cannabis infused product under *Ashley's Law*).
 - b. Any anabolic steroid unless it is being administered in accordance with a physician's or licensed practitioner's prescription.
 - c. Any performance-enhancing substance on the Illinois High School Association's most current banned substance list unless administered in accordance with a physician's or licensed practitioner's prescription.
 - d. Any prescription drug when not prescribed for the student by a physician or licensed practitioner, or when used in a manner inconsistent with the prescription or prescribing physician's or licensed practitioner's instructions. The use or possession of medical cannabis, even by a student for whom medical cannabis has been prescribed, is prohibited unless the student is authorized to be administered a medical cannabis infused product under *Ashley's Law*.
 - e. Any inhalant, regardless of whether it contains an illegal drug or controlled substance: (a) that a student believes is, or represents to be capable of, causing intoxication, hallucination, excitement, or dulling of the brain or nervous system; or (b) about which the student engaged in behavior that would lead a reasonable person to believe that the student intended the inhalant to cause intoxication, hallucination, excitement, or dulling of the brain or nervous system. The prohibition in this section does not apply to a student's use of asthma or other legally prescribed inhalant medications.

- f. Any substance inhaled, injected, smoked, consumed, or otherwise ingested or absorbed with the intention of causing a physiological or psychological change in the body, including without limitation, pure caffeine in tablet or powdered form.
- g. Look-alike or counterfeit drugs, including a substance that is not prohibited by this policy, but one: (a) that a student believes to be, or represents to be, an illegal drug, controlled substance, or other substance that is prohibited by this policy; or (b) about which a student engaged in behavior that would lead a reasonable person to believe that the student expressly or impliedly represented to be an illegal drug, controlled substance, or other substance that is prohibited by this policy.
- h. Drug paraphernalia, including devices that are or can be used to: (a) ingest, inhale, or inject cannabis or controlled substances into the body; and (b) grow, process, store, or conceal cannabis or controlled substances.

Students who are under the influence of any prohibited substance are not permitted to attend school or school functions and are treated as though they had the prohibited substance, as applicable, in their possession.

- 1. Using, possessing, controlling, or transferring a *weapon* as that term is defined in the **Weapons** section of this policy, or violating the **Weapons** section of this policy.
- 2. Using or possessing a cellular telephone, electronic signaling device, two-way radio, video recording device, and/or other telecommunication device, unless authorized and approved by the Building Principal.
- 3. Using or possessing a laser pointer unless under a staff member's direct supervision and in the context of instruction.
- 4. Disobeying rules of student conduct or directives from staff members or school officials. Examples of disobeying staff directives include refusing a District staff member's request to stop, present school identification, or submit to a search.
- 5. Engaging in academic dishonesty, including cheating, intentionally plagiarizing, wrongfully giving or receiving help during an academic examination, altering report cards, and wrongfully obtaining test copies or scores.
- 6. Engaging in hazing or any kind of bullying or aggressive behavior that does physical or psychological harm to a staff person or another student, or urging other students to engage in such conduct. Prohibited conduct specifically includes, without limitation, any use of violence, intimidation, force, noise, coercion, threats, stalking, harassment, sexual harassment, public humiliation, theft or destruction of property, retaliation, hazing, bullying using a school computer or a school computer network, or other comparable conduct.
- 7. Engaging in any sexual activity, including without limitation, offensive touching, sexual harassment, indecent exposure (including mooning), and sexual assault. This does not include the non-disruptive: (a) expression of gender or sexual orientation or preference, or (b) display of affection during non-instructional time.
- 8. Teen dating violence, as described in Board policy 7:185, *Teen Dating Violence Prohibited*.
- 9. Causing or attempting to cause damage to, or stealing or attempting to steal, school property or another person's personal property.
- 10. Entering school property or a school facility without proper authorization.
- 11. In the absence of a reasonable belief that an emergency exists, calling emergency responders (such as calling 911); signaling or setting off alarms or signals indicating the presence of an emergency; or indicating the presence of a bomb or explosive device on school grounds, school bus, or at any school activity.
- 12. Being absent without a recognized excuse; State law and School Board policy regarding

- truancy control will be used with chronic and habitual truants.
- 13. Being involved with any public school fraternity, sorority, or secret society, by: (a) being a member; (b) promising to join; (c) pledging to become a member; or (d) soliciting any other person to join, promise to join, or be pledged to become a member.
- 14. Being involved in gangs or gang-related activities, including displaying gang symbols or paraphernalia.
- 15. Violating any criminal law, including but not limited to, assault, battery, arson, theft, gambling, eavesdropping, vandalism, and hazing.
- 16. Making an explicit threat on an Internet website against a school employee, a student, or any school-related personnel if the Internet website through which the threat was made is a site that was accessible within the school at the time the threat was made or was available to third parties who worked or studied within the school grounds at the time the threat was made, and the threat could be reasonably interpreted as threatening to the safety and security of the threatened individual because of his or her duties or employment status or status as a student inside the school.
- 17. Operating an unmanned aircraft system (UAS) or drone for any purpose on school grounds or at any school event unless granted permission by the Superintendent or designee.
- 18. Engaging in any activity, on or off campus, that interferes with, disrupts, or adversely affects the school environment, school operations, or an educational function, including but not limited to, conduct that may reasonably be considered to: (a) be a threat or an attempted intimidation of a staff member; or (b) endanger the health or safety of students, staff, or school property.

For purposes of this policy, the term *possession* includes having control, custody, or care, currently or in the past, of an object or substance, including situations in which the item is: (a) on the student's person; (b) contained in another item belonging to, or under the control of, the student, such as in the student's clothing, backpack, or automobile; (c) in a school's student locker, desk, or other school property; or (d) at any location on school property or at a school-sponsored event.

Efforts, including the use of positive interventions and supports, shall be made to deter students, while at school or a school-related event, from engaging in aggressive behavior that may reasonably produce physical or psychological harm to someone else. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the parent/guardian of a student who engages in aggressive behavior is notified of the incident. The failure to provide such notification does not limit the Board's authority to impose discipline, including suspension or expulsion, for such behavior.

No disciplinary action shall be taken against any student that is based totally or in part on the refusal of the student's parent/guardian to administer or consent to the administration of psychotropic or psychostimulant medication to the student.

Disciplinary Measures

School officials shall limit the number and duration of expulsions and out-of-school suspensions to the greatest extent practicable, and, where practicable and reasonable, shall consider forms of non-exclusionary discipline before using out-of-school suspensions or expulsions. School personnel shall not advise or encourage students to drop out voluntarily due to behavioral or academic difficulties. Potential disciplinary measures include, without limitation, any of the following:

- 1. Notifying parent(s)/guardian(s).
- 2. Disciplinary conference.

- 3. Withholding of privileges.
- 4. Temporary removal from the classroom.
- 5. Return of property or restitution for lost, stolen, or damaged property.
- 6. In-school suspension. The Building Principal or designee shall ensure that the student is properly supervised.
- 7. After-school study or Saturday study provided the student's parent/guardian has been notified. If transportation arrangements cannot be agreed upon, an alternative disciplinary measure must be used. The student must be supervised by the detaining teacher or the Building Principal or designee.
- 8. Community service with local public and nonprofit agencies that enhances community efforts to meet human, educational, environmental, or public safety needs. The District will not provide transportation. School administration shall use this option only as an alternative to another disciplinary measure, giving the student and/or parent/guardian the choice.
- 9. Seizure of contraband; confiscation and temporary retention of personal property that was used to violate this policy or school disciplinary rules.
- 10. Suspension of bus riding privileges in accordance with Board policy 7:220, Bus Conduct.
- 11. Out-of-school suspension from school and all school activities in accordance with Board policy 7:200, *Suspension Procedures*. A student who has been suspended shall also be restricted from being on school grounds and at school activities.
- 12. Expulsion from school and all school activities for a definite time period not to exceed two calendar years in accordance with Board policy 7:210, *Expulsion Procedures*. A student who has been expelled shall also be restricted from being on school grounds and at school activities.
- 13. Transfer to an alternative program if the student is expelled or otherwise qualifies for the transfer under State law. The transfer shall be in the manner provided in <u>Article 13A</u> or <u>13B</u> of the School Code.
- 14. Notifying juvenile authorities or other law enforcement whenever the conduct involves criminal activity, including but not limited to, illegal drugs (controlled substances), *look-alikes*, alcohol, or weapons or in other circumstances as authorized by the reciprocal reporting agreement between the District and local law enforcement agencies.

The above list of disciplinary measures is a range of options that will not always be applicable in every case. In some circumstances, it may not be possible to avoid suspending or expelling a student because behavioral interventions, other than a suspension and expulsion, will not be appropriate and available, and the only reasonable and practical way to resolve the threat and/or address the disruption is a suspension or expulsion. Students enrolled in the District's State-funded preschool program(s) may be temporarily removed or transitioned to a new program in accordance with federal and State law. State law prohibits the expulsion of students from the program(s).

Corporal punishment is prohibited. Corporal punishment is defined as slapping, paddling, or prolonged maintenance of students in physically painful positions, or intentional infliction of bodily harm. Corporal punishment does not include reasonable force as needed to maintain safety for students, staff, or other persons, or for the purpose of self-defense or defense of property.

Isolated Time Out, Time Out, and Physical Restraint

Neither isolated time out, time out, nor physical restraint shall be used to discipline or punish a student. These methods are only authorized for use as permitted in <u>105 ILCS 5/10-20.33</u>, State Board of Education rules (23 Ill.Admin.Code §§ 1.280, 1.285), and the District's procedure(s).

Weapons

A student who is determined to have brought one of the following objects to school, any school-sponsored activity or event, or any activity or event that bears a reasonable relationship to school shall be expelled for a period of at least one calendar year but not more than two calendar years:

- 1. A firearm, meaning any gun, rifle, shotgun, or weapon as defined by Section 921 of Title 18 of the United States Code (18 U.S.C. § 921), firearm as defined in Section 1.1 of the Firearm Owners Identification Card Act (430 ILCS 65/), or firearm as defined in Section 24-1 of the Criminal Code of 1961 (720 ILCS 5/24-1).
- 2. A knife, brass knuckles, or other knuckle weapon regardless of its composition, a billy club, or any other object if used or attempted to be used to cause bodily harm, including *look-alikes* of any firearm as defined above.

The expulsion requirement under either paragraph one or two above may be modified by the Superintendent, and the Superintendent's determination may be modified by the Board on a case-by-case basis. The Superintendent or designee may grant an exception to this policy, upon the prior request of an adult supervisor, for students in theatre, cooking, ROTC, martial arts, and similar programs, whether or not school-sponsored, provided the item is not equipped, nor intended, to do bodily harm.

This policy's prohibitions concerning weapons apply regardless of whether: (1) a student is licensed to carry a concealed firearm, or (2) the Board permits visitors, who are licensed to carry a concealed firearm, to store a firearm in a locked vehicle in a school parking area.

Re-Engagement of Returning Students

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a process to facilitate the re-engagement of students who are returning from an out-of-school suspension, expulsion, or an alternative school setting. The goal of re-engagement shall be to support the student's ability to be successful in school following a period of exclusionary discipline and shall include the opportunity for students who have been suspended to complete or make up work for equivalent academic credit.

Required Notices

A school staff member shall immediately notify the office of the Building Principal in the event that he or she: (1) observes any person in possession of a firearm on or around school grounds; however, such action may be delayed if immediate notice would endanger students under his or her supervision, (2) observes or has reason to suspect that any person on school grounds is or was involved in a drug-related incident, or (3) observes a battery committed against any staff member. Upon receiving such a report, the Building Principal or designee shall immediately notify the local law enforcement agency, Ill. Dept. of State Police (ISP), and any involved student's parent/guardian. *School grounds* includes modes of transportation to school activities and any public way within 1000 feet of the school, as well as school property itself.

Delegation of Authority

Each teacher, and any other school personnel when students are under his or her charge, is authorized to impose any disciplinary measure, other than suspension, expulsion, corporal punishment, or in-school suspension, that is appropriate and in accordance with the policies and rules on student discipline. Teachers, other certificated [licensed] educational employees, and other persons providing a related service for or with respect to a student, may use reasonable force as needed to maintain safety for other

students, school personnel, or other persons, or for the purpose of self-defense or defense of property. Teachers may temporarily remove students from a classroom for disruptive behavior.

The Superintendent, Building Principal, Assistant Building Principal, or Dean of Students is authorized to impose the same disciplinary measures as teachers and may suspend students guilty of gross disobedience or misconduct from school (including all school functions) and from riding the school bus, up to 10 consecutive school days, provided the appropriate procedures are followed. The Board may suspend a student from riding the bus in excess of 10 school days for safety reasons.

Student Handbook

The Superintendent, with input from the parent-teacher advisory committee, shall prepare disciplinary rules implementing the District's disciplinary policies. These disciplinary rules shall be presented annually to the Board for its review and approval.

A student handbook, including the District disciplinary policies and rules, shall be distributed to the students' parents/guardians within 15 days of the beginning of the school year or a student's enrollment.

Incorporated

by Reference: 7:190-AP4 (Use of Isolated Time Out, Time Out, and Physical Restraint)

LEGAL REF.:

20 U.S.C. §6081, Pro-Children Act of 1994.

20 U.S.C. §7961et seq., Gun Free Schools Act.

105 ILCS 5/10-20.5b, 5/10-20.14, 5/10-20.28, 5/10-20.36, 5/10-21.7, 5/10-21.10, 5/10-22.6,

<u>5/10-27.1A</u>, <u>5/10-27.1B</u>, <u>5/22-33</u>, <u>5/24-24</u>, <u>5/26-12</u>, <u>5/27-23.7</u>, and <u>5/31-3</u>.

105 ILCS 110/3.10, Critical Health Problems and Comprehensive Health Education Act.

410 ILCS 130/, Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Pilot Program.

410 ILCS 647/, Powdered Caffeine Control and Education Act.

430 ILCS 66/, Firearm Concealed Carry Act.

23 Ill.Admin.Code §§1.280, 1.285.

CROSS REF.: 2:150 (Committees), 2:240 (Board Policy Development), 5:230 (Maintaining Student Discipline), 6:110 (Programs for Students At Risk of Academic Failure and/or Dropping Out of School and Graduation Incentives Program), 7:70 (Attendance and Truancy), 7:130 (Student Rights and Responsibilities), 7:140 (Search and Seizure), 7:150 (Agency and Police Interviews), 7:160 (Student Appearance), 7:170 (Vandalism), 7:180 (Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment), 7:185 (Teen Dating Violence Prohibited), 7:200 (Suspension Procedures), 7:210 (Expulsion Procedures), 7:220 (Bus Conduct), 7:230 (Misconduct by Students with Disabilities), 7:240 (Conduct Code for Participants in Extracurricular Activities), 7:270 (Administering Medicines to Students), 7:310 (Restrictions on Publications; Elementary Schools), 7:315 (Restrictions on Publications; High Schools), 8:30 (Visitors to and Conduct on School Property)

Adopted: March 8, 2022

Use of Time Out, Isolated Time Out, and Physical Restraint

Time Out is defined as a behavior management technique for the purpose of calming or de-escalation that involves the involuntary monitored separation of a student from classmates with a trained adult for part of the school day, only for a brief time, in a nonlocked setting. Trained is defined as

- Only staff who have obtained and maintained certification in Therapeutic Crisis Intervention (TCI) Training (or who otherwise meet ISBE training requirements and have been preapproved through the USD116 Student Services Department) should engage a student in a Time Out or Physical Restraint
- A TCI trained adult (or who otherwise meet ISBE training requirements and have been preapproved through the USD116 Student Services Department) who is responsible for supervising the student must remain with the student at all times during the time out.
- If a room used for time out has a door, the door will not be locked at any time during the time out.

Time out (as defined by ISBE for reporting purposes) only includes situations when the student is in a monitored enclosure due to exhibiting behavior that poses an imminent danger to self or others, not situations where the student is being disruptive and needs to cool down in a sensory room, reflection area, or other positive or therapeutic supports.

- The following are not considered a Time Out according to ISBE Guidance
 - o Positive behavior interventions, support services, and routine discipline
 - Student initiated or teacher initiated sensory breaks, calming breaks, use of study carrels or non-enclosed partition in the classroom, similar interventions at staff direction in the building
 - Student requested or teache initiated opportunity to go to a different room/location
 - Removing other students (clearing) from a classroom and working with (or waiting for support for) an escalated student in the classroom
 - Transporting a student out of a classroom
 - o In school suspension, detention, or being sent to the principal's office
 - Brief time in the hallway/similar environment or other routine discipline measures

Isolated Time Out, is defined as the involuntary confinement of a student alone in a time out room or other enclosure outside the classroom without a supervising adult in the time out room or enclosure. Isolated time out is allowed only under limited circumstances. Isolated time out may be used only when the adult in the time out room or enclosure is in imminent danger of serious physical harm because the student is unable to cease actively engaging in extreme physical aggression.

For an isolated time out, an adult who is responsible for supervising the student must remain within two feet of the enclosure. The supervising staff member must always be able to see, hear, and communicate with the student. The door shall not be locked or held to block egress. A student in isolated time out shall not be supervised by cameras, audio recording, or any other electronic monitoring device.

Physical Restraint is defined as holding a student or otherwise restricting the student's movements. Physical restraint as permitted pursuant to this Section includes only the use of specific, planned techniques. A physical restraint shall not impair a student's ability to breathe or speak normally, obstruct a student's airway, or interfere with a student's ability to speak.

• **Prone** physical restraint (a physical restraint in which a student is held face-down on the floor or other surface and physical pressure is applied to the student's body to keep the student in the prone position) shall not be permitted.

- Physical restraint does not include momentary periods of physical restriction by direct person-to-person contact without the aid of material or mechanical devices that are accomplished with limited force and that are designed to prevent a student from completing an act that would result in potential physical harm to himself, herself, or another person or damage to property. [105 ILCS 5/10-20.33 and 105 ILCS 5/34-18.20] Staff is allowed to use momentary periods of physical restriction as defined above to ensure student safety, regardless of whether they have gone through TCI training.
- Students shall not be subjected to physical restraint for using profanity or other verbal displays of disrespect for themselves or others. A verbal threat shall not be considered as constituting a physical danger unless a student also demonstrates a means of or intent to immediately carry out the threat.
- **Time out** and **physical restraint** as defined in this document shall be used only for therapeutic purposes, or as a means of maintaining a safe environment for learning, and only to the extent that they are necessary to preserve the safety of students and others. Neither time out nor physical restraint shall be used in administering discipline to individual students, i.e., as a form of punishment

The Superintendent or designee shall compile an annual review of the use of isolated time out or physical restraint reported to ISBE on form 11-01 Physical Restraint and Time Out Form.

STUDENT TECHNOLOGY

BP 6:235 Access to Electronic Networks

We are pleased to offer students of the Urbana School District #116 access to the District computer network for electronic mail and the Internet. To gain access to e-mail and the Internet, all students under the age of 18 must obtain parental permission and must sign and return this form each year to the school office. Students 18 and over may sign their own forms.

Access to e-mail and the internet will enable students to explore thousands of libraries and databases while exchanging messages with internet users throughout the world. Families should be warned that some material accessible via the Internet may contain items that are illegal, defamatory, inaccurate or potentially offensive to some people. While our intent is to make Internet access available to further educational goals and objectives, students may find ways to access other materials as well. We believe that the benefits to students from access to the Internet, in the form of information resources and opportunities for collaboration, exceed any disadvantages. But ultimately, parents and guardians of minors are responsible for setting and conveying the standards that their children should follow when using media and information sources. To that end, Urbana School District #116 supports and respects each family's right to decide whether or not to apply for access.

District Internet and E-mail Rules

Students are responsible for good behavior on school computer networks as they are in a classroom or school hallway. Communications on the network are often public in nature. General school rules for behavior and communications apply.

The network is provided for students to conduct research and communicate with others. Access to network services is given to students who agree to act in a considerate and responsible manner. Parent permission is required. Access is a privilege - NOT A RIGHT. Access entails responsibility.

Individual users of the District computer networks are responsible for their behavior and communications over our network. It is presumed that users will comply with District standards and will honor the agreements they have signed. Beyond the clarification of such standards, the District is not responsible for restricting, monitoring or controlling the communications of individuals utilizing the network.

Network storage areas may be treated like school lockers. Network administrators may review files and communications to maintain system integrity and insure that users are using the system responsibly. Users should not expect that files stored on District servers will always be private. During school, teachers of younger students will guide them toward appropriate materials. Outside of school, families bear the same responsibility for such guidance as they exercise with information sources such as television, telephones, movies, radio and other potentially offensive media.

As outlined in Board policy and procedures on students' rights and responsibilities, copies of which are available in school offices, the following are NOT permitted:

- sending or displaying offensive messages or pictures
- using obscene language
- harassing, insulting or attacking others
- damaging computers, computer systems or computer networks
- violating copyright laws
- using another's password
- trespassing in another's folders, work or files
- intentionally wasting limited resources
- employing the network for commercial purposes
- accessing games, IRC (chats), MUD's, MOO's, MUVE's or other similar sites without permission from a teacher

Violations may result in a loss of access as well as other disciplinary or legal actions.

Top Six Things to Know Prior to Using the Internet

- 1. The Internet is a network of computers and computer networks that provides access to information contained on millions of computers around the world.
- 2. Because the information on the Internet comes from all over the world, we need to understand that neither Urbana School District #116 nor any staff member controls the content of this information. Some information may be controversial, offensive, or inaccurate.
- 3. The Internet is a powerful resource tool. When at school, students should use it under the direction and guidance of professional staff for educational purposes only.
- 4. Any information that is available on the internet is the product of another individual's work, and must be cited if used. This information is referred to as intellectual property and includes pictures, logos, trademarks, printed materials, computer software, video and sounds.
- 5. The Internet allows students not only to receive information, but to send it to others. In light of that, students should behave in a responsible manner when communicating electronically.

6. Urbana School District #116 uses a filtering/blocking software, it is important to note that no filtering/blocking software is 100% guaranteed and must be paired with supervision and good parental involvement.

Online Rules

Personal Safety and Respecting Privacy

- I will not share my or any other person's address, passwords, ID's, telephone number, parent's work address/telephone number, the name and location of my school or other personal information. If participating in an approved classroom project, name and location of school may be used.
- I will tell my teachers right away if I come across any information that makes me feel uncomfortable.
- I will never agree to get together with someone I "meet" online.
- I will never send a person my picture or anything else without first checking with my teachers and parents.
- I will not respond to any messages that are mean, use bad language or in any way make me feel uncomfortable. It is not my fault if I get a message like that. If I do I will tell my teachers right away.
- I will not give out a credit card number online, subscribe to any services or order any materials or services on the Internet.
- I will respect individual's rights to privacy and to freedom from intimidation, harassment, and unwarranted annoyance.
- I recognize the limitations to privacy afforded by electronic services.

Illegal Activities

- I will not use the network for illegal purposes such as: arranging for a drug sale or purchase of alcohol, engaging in criminal gang activity, threatening the safety of a person, etc.
- I will not participate in any activity that violates school rules or local, state or federal laws.

Respecting Resource

- I will abide by security restrictions on all systems and information to which access is permitted. I will not attempt to evade, disable, or "crack" passwords or other security provisions. I understand that these activities threaten the work of others and are grounds for immediate termination or suspension of privileges and possible further sanctions.
- I understand that the following is not permitted:
 - ✓ sending or displaying offensive messages or pictures using obscene language
 - ✓ trespassing in another's folders, work or files
 - ✓ using another's password
 - ✓ using the network for commercial purposes

Acceptable Access

- I understand I may not play non-educational games or use other interactive sites such as IRC (chats), social networks (Facebook, Instagram, Snapchat, Twitter, etc., MUD's (Multiple User Domains), MOO's (MUD Object Oriented), or MUVE (Multiple User Virtual Environments) unless specifically assigned to do so by a teacher.
- I will not make deliberate attempts to disrupt the computer system, damage or interfere in any way with an individual, a business, or an organization's data by spreading a virus or by any other means. These actions are illegal.
- I am responsible for my individual account and will not share my password with others, nor will I access the network or other information source without proper authorization.
- I will not use another person's account to send or receive email.

Plagiarism and Copyright Infringement

- I will not plagiarize any materials (documents, web pages, software, graphics, etc.) that I find on the Internet. Plagiarism is taking the ideas or writings of others and presenting them as if they were yours.
- I will respect copyright and other intellectual-property rights. Unauthorized copying of files or passwords belonging to others may constitute plagiarism or theft. Modifying files without authorization (including altering information, introducing viruses, or damaging files) is unethical, may be illegal, and may lead to sanctions.
- The Urbana School District #116 does not condone and specifically forbids the unauthorized duplication of software.

Sanctions:

- Violating these rules may result in a loss of access.
- Additional disciplinary action may be taken at the building level in line with existing practice regarding inappropriate language or behavior.
- Legal action will be taken when applicable.

LEGAL REF.:

20 U.S.C. §7131, Elementary and Secondary Education Act.

47 U.S.C. §254(h) and (l), Children's Internet Protection Act.

47 C.F.R. Part 54, Subpart F, Universal Service Support for Schools and Libraries.

115 ILCS 5/14(c-5), Ill. Educational Labor Relations Act.

720 ILCS 5/26.5.

CROSS REF.: 5:100 (Staff Development Program), 5:170 (Copyright), 6:40 (Curriculum Development), 6:210 (Instructional Materials), 6:230 (Media Center), 6:260 (Complaints About Curriculum, Instructional Materials, and Programs), 7:130 (Student Rights and Responsibilities), 7:190 (Student Behavior), 7:310 (Restrictions on Publications; Elementary Schools), 7:315 (Restrictions on Publications; High Schools), 7:345 (Use of Educational Technologies; Student Data Privacy and Security)

Adopted: October 19, 2021

BP 7:345 Use of Educational Technologies; Student Data Privacy and Security

Educational technologies used in the District shall further the objectives of the District's educational program, as set forth in Board policy 6:10, *Educational Philosophy and Objectives*, align with the curriculum criteria in policy 6:40, *Curriculum Development*, and/or support efficient District operations. The Superintendent shall ensure that the use of educational technologies in the District meets the above criteria.

The District and/or vendors under its control may need to collect and maintain data that personally identifies students in order to use certain educational technologies for the benefit of student learning or District operations.

Federal and State law govern the protection of student data, including school student records and/or *covered information*. The sale, rental, lease, or trading of any school student records or covered information by the District is prohibited. Protecting such information is important for legal compliance, District operations, and maintaining the trust of District stakeholders, including parents, students and staff. The Board designates the Chief Information Officer to serve as Privacy Officer, who shall ensure the District complies with the duties and responsibilities required of it under the Student Online Personal Protection Act, 105 ILCS 85/, amended by P.A. 101-516, eff. 7-1-21.

Definitions

Covered information means personally identifiable information (PII) or information linked to PII in any media or format that is not publicly available and is any of the following: (1) created by or provided to an operator by a student or the student's parent/guardian in the course of the student's or parent/guardian's use of the operator's site, service or application; (2) created by or provided to an operator by an employee or agent of the District; or (3) gathered by an operator through the operation of its site, service, or application.

Operators are entities (such as educational technology vendors) that operate Internet websites, online services, online applications, or mobile applications that are designed, marketed, and primarily used for K-12 school purposes.

Breach means the unauthorized acquisition of computerized data that compromises the security, confidentiality or integrity of covered information maintained by an operator or the District.

Operator Contracts

The Superintendent or designee designates which District employees are authorized to enter into written agreements with operators for those contracts that do not require separate Board approval. Contracts between the Board and operators shall be entered into in accordance with State law and Board policy 4:60, *Purchases and Contracts*, and shall include any specific provisions required by State law.

Security Standards

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the District implements and maintains reasonable security procedures and practices that otherwise meet or exceed industry standards designed to protect covered information from unauthorized access, destruction, use, modification, or disclosure. In the event the District receives notice from an operator of a breach or has determined a breach has occurred, the

Superintendent or designee shall also ensure that the District provides any breach notifications required by State law.

LEGAL REF.:

20 U.S.C. §1232g, Family and Educational Rights and Privacy Act, implemented by 34 C.F.R. Part 99.

105 ILCS 10/, Ill. School Student Records Act.

105 ILCS 85/, Student Online Personal Protection Act.

23 Ill. Admin. Code Part 380.

CROSS REF.: 4:15 (Identity Protection), 4:60 (Purchases and Contracts), 6:235 (Access to Electronic

Networks), 7:340 (Student Records)

Adopted: March 8, 2022

PARENTS' RIGHT TO KNOW TITLE I SCHOOLS AND TEACHER QUALIFICATIONS

July 2023

Dear Parent:

In accordance with ESEA Section 1111 (h)(6) PARENTS RIGHT-TO-KNOW, the Urbana School District is notifying every parent of a student in a Title I school that you have the right and may request information regarding the professional qualification of your child's classroom teacher. This information regarding the professional qualifications of your child's classroom teachers including, at a minimum, the following:

- 1. Whether the teacher has met State qualification and licensing criteria for the grade levels and subject areas in which the teacher provides instruction.
- 2. Whether the teacher is teaching under emergency or other provisional status through which State qualification or licensing criteria have been waived.
- 3. The baccalaureate degree major of the teacher and any other graduate certification or degree held by the teacher, and the field of discipline of the certification or degree.
- 4. Whether the child is provided services by paraprofessionals and, if so, their qualifications.

If at any time your child has been taught for 4 or more consecutive weeks by a teacher not highly qualified, the school will notify you.

If you have questions, please feel free to contact the district's Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources, Dr. Angi Franklin, at 384-3641.

Sincerely,

Dr. Kimberly Norton

Symbers nortox

Assistant Superintendent of Student Learning

VIDEO SURVEILLANCE

Use of Video Camera Surveillance on School Property

Video cameras may be used in schools and on school property as necessary in order to monitor conduct and to promote and maintain a safe environment for students and employees.

Students are prohibited from tampering with the video cameras. Students who violate this policy shall be disciplined in accordance with the Board's discipline policy and shall reimburse the School District for any necessary repairs or replacement.

The content of the video recordings are student records and are subject to District policy and procedure concerning school student records. Only those people with a legitimate educational or administrative purpose may view the video recordings. If the content of a video recording becomes the subject of a student disciplinary hearing, it will be treated like other evidence in the proceeding.

SCHOOL BUS INFORMATION

Contact First Student at (217) 344-4586 for information about busing if your student rides a yellow school bus. Elementary students ride First Student buses.

Contact C-U MTD at (217) 384-8188 if your middle school or high school student rides MTD to and from school.

BP 7:220 Bus Conduct

All students must follow the District's School Bus Safety Rules.

School Bus Suspensions

The Superintendent, or any designee as permitted in the School Code, is authorized to suspend a student from riding the school bus for up to 10 consecutive school days for engaging in gross disobedience or misconduct, including but not limited to, the following:

- 1. Prohibited student conduct as defined in School Board policy 7:190, *Student Behavior* and the District's Bus Rules and Expectations.
- 2. Willful injury or threat of injury to a bus driver or to another rider.
- 3. Willful and/or repeated defacement of the bus.
- 4. Repeated use of profanity.
- 5. Repeated willful disobedience of a directive from a bus driver or other supervisor.
- 6. Such other behavior as the Superintendent or designee deems to threaten the safe operation of the bus and/or its occupants.

If a student is suspended from riding the bus for gross disobedience or misconduct on a bus, the School Board may suspend the student from riding the school bus for a period in excess of 10 days for safety

reasons. The District's regular suspension procedures shall be used to suspend a student's privilege to ride a school bus.

Academic Credit for Missed Classes During School Bus Suspension A student suspended from riding the bus who does not have alternate transportation to school shall have the opportunity to complete or make up work for equivalent academic credit. It shall be the responsibility of the student's parent or guardian to notify the school that the student does not have alternate transportation.

<u>Electronic Recordings on School Buses</u> Electronic visual and audio recordings may be used on school buses to monitor conduct and to promote and maintain a safe environment for students and employees when transportation is provided for any school-related activity. Notice of electronic recordings shall be displayed on the exterior of the vehicle's entrance door and front interior bulkhead in compliance with State law and the rules of the Illinois Department of Transportation, Division of Traffic Safety.

Students are prohibited from tampering with electronic recording devices. Students who violate this policy shall be disciplined in accordance with the Board's discipline policy and shall reimburse the School District for any necessary repairs or replacement.

LEGAL REF.:

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. §1232g; 34 C.F.R. Part 99.

105 ILCS 5/10-20.14, 5/10-22.6, and 10/.

720 ILCS 5/14-3(m).

23 Ill.Admin.Code Part 375, Student Records.

CROSS REF.: 4:110 (Transportation), 4:170 (Safety), 7:130 (Student Rights and Responsibilities), 7:170 (Vandalism), 7:190 (Student Behavior), 7:200 (Suspension Procedures), 7:230 (Misconduct by Students with Disabilities), 7:340 (Student Records)

Adopted: October 19, 2021

PART TIME ATTENDANCE

BP 7:40 Nonpublic School Students, Including Parochial and Home-Schooled Students

Part-Time Attendance

The District accepts nonpublic school students, including parochial and home-schooled students, who live within the District for part-time attendance in the District's regular education program on a space-available basis. Requests for part-time attendance must be submitted to the principal of the school in the school attendance area where the student resides.

A student accepted for partial enrollment must comply with all discipline and attendance requirements established by the school. He or she may participate in any co-curricular activity associated with a District class in which he or she is enrolled. The parent(s)/guardian(s) of a student accepted for partial enrollment must pay all fees, pro-rated on the basis of a percentage of full-time fees. Transportation to and/or from school is provided on regular bus routes to or from a point on the route nearest or most easily accessible to the nonpublic school or student's home. This transportation shall be on the same basis as the District provides transportation for its full-time students. Transportation on other than established bus routes is the responsibility of the parent(s)/guardian(s).

Students with a Disability

The District accepts for part-time attendance those children for whom it has been determined that special education services are needed, are enrolled in nonpublic schools, and otherwise qualify for enrollment in the District. Requests must be submitted by the student's parent/guardian. Special educational services shall be provided to such students as soon as possible after identification, evaluation, and placement procedures provided by State law, but no later than the beginning of the next school semester following the completion of such procedures. Transportation for such students shall be provided only if required in the child's individualized educational program on the basis of the child's disabling condition or as the special education program location may require.

Extracurricular Activities, Including Interscholastic Competition

Nonpublic or home-schooled student, regardless of whether they attend a District school part-time, will not be allowed to participate in IHSA/IESA sponsored extracurricular activities unless the activity is directly related to an/or part of the requirements of a credit class. Any non eligibility tracked activities are open to all students. A nonpublic or home-schooled student who participates in an extracurricular activity is subject to all policies, regulations, and rules that are applicable to other participants in the activity.

Assignment When Enrolling Full-Time in a District School

Grade placement by, and academic credits earned at, a nonpublic school will be accepted if the school has a Certificate of Nonpublic School Recognition from the Illinois State Board of Education, or, if outside Illinois, if the school is accredited by the state agency governing education.

A student who, after receiving instruction in a non-recognized or non-accredited school, enrolls in the District will: (1) be assigned to a grade level according to academic proficiency, and/or (2) have academic credits recognized by the District if the student demonstrates appropriate academic proficiency to the school administration. Any portion of a student's transcript relating to such instruction will not be considered for placement on the honor roll or computation in class rank.

Notwithstanding the above, recognition of grade placement and academic credits awarded by a nonpublic school is at the sole discretion of the District. All school and class assignments will be made according to Board of Education policy 7:30, *Student Assignment and Intra-District Transfer*, as well as administrative procedures implementing this policy.

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/10-20.24and 5/14-6.01.

CROSS REF.: 4:110 (Transportation), 6:170 (Title I Programs), 6:190 (Extracurricular and Co-Curricular Activities), 6:320 (Credit for Proficiency), 7:30 (Student Assignment and Intra-District Transfer), 7:300 (Extracurricular Athletics)

ADOPTED: October 20, 2020

STUDENT RESIDENCY

BP 7:60 Residence

Resident Students

Only students who are residents of the District may attend a District school without a tuition charge, except as otherwise provided below or in State law. A student's residence is the same as the person who has legal custody of the student.

A person asserting legal custody over a student, who is not the child's natural or adoptive parent, shall complete a notarized affidavit, stating: (a) that he or she has assumed and exercises legal responsibility for the child, (b) the reason the child lives with him or her, other than to receive an education in the District, and (c) that he or she exercises full control over the child regarding daily educational and medical decisions in case of emergency. If the District knows the current address of the child's natural or adoptive parent, the District shall request in writing that the person complete a signed statement or affidavit stating: (a) the role and responsibility of the person with whom their child is living, and (b) that the person with whom the child is living has full control over the child regarding daily educational and medical decisions in case of emergency.

A student whose family moves out of the District during the school year will be permitted to attend school for the remainder of the year without payment of tuition.

When a student's change of residence is due to the military service obligation of the student's legal custodian, the student's residence is deemed to be unchanged for the duration of the custodian's military service obligation if the student's custodian made a written request. The District, however, is not responsible for the student's transportation to or from school.

If, at the time of enrollment, a dependent child of military personnel is housed in temporary housing located outside of the District, but will be living within the District within six months after the time of initial enrollment, the child is allowed to enroll, subject to the requirements of State law, and must not be charged tuition.

Requests for Nonresident Student Admission

Non-resident students may attend District schools upon the approval of a request submitted by the student's parent(s)/guardian(s) for non-resident admission. The Superintendent may approve the request subject to the following:

- 1. The student will attend on a year-to-year basis. Approval for any one year is not authorization to attend a following year.
- 2. The student will be accepted only if there is sufficient room.
- 3. The student's parent(s)/guardian(s) will be charged the maximum amount of tuition as allowed by State law.
- 4. The student's parent(s)/guardian(s) will be responsible for transporting the student to and from school

Admission of Nonresident Students Pursuant to an Agreement or Order

Nonresident students may attend District schools tuition-free pursuant to:

1. A written agreement with an adjacent school district to provide for tuition-free attendance by a student of that district, provided both the Superintendent or designee and the adjacent districts determine that the student's health and safety will be served by such attendance.

- 2. A written agreement with cultural exchange organizations and institutions supported by charity to provide for tuition-free attendance by foreign exchange students and nonresident pupils of charitable institutions.
- 3. According to an intergovernmental agreement.
- 4. Whenever any State or federal law or a court order mandates the acceptance of a nonresident student.

Homeless Children

Any homeless child shall be immediately admitted, even if the child or child's parent/guardian is unable to produce records normally required to establish residency. Board of Education policy 6:140, *Education of Homeless Children*, and its implementing administrative procedure, govern the enrollment of homeless children.

Challenging a Student's Residence Status

If the Superintendent or designee determines that a student attending school on a tuition-free basis is a non-resident of the District for whom tuition is required to be charged, he or she on behalf of the Board of Education shall notify the person who enrolled the student of the tuition amount that is due. The notice shall detail the specific reasons why the Board believes that the student is a nonresident of the District and shall be given by certified mail, return receipt requested. The person who enrolled the student may challenge this determination and request a hearing as provided by the School Code, 105 ILCS 5/10-20.12b.

LEGAL REF.:

42 U.S.C. §11431et seq., McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act.

<u>105 ILCS 5/10-20.12a</u>, <u>5/10-20.12b</u>, <u>5/10-22.5</u>, and <u>5/10-22.5a</u>.

105 ILCS 45/, Education for Homeless Children Act.

105 ILCS 70/, Educational Opportunity for Military Children Act.

23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.240.

Israel S. by Owens v. Bd. of Educ. of Oak Park and River Forest High Sch. Dist. 200, 235 Ill.App.3d 652 (5th Dist. 1992).

Joel R. v. Board of Education of Manheim School District 83, 292 Ill.App.3d 607 (1st Dist. 1997).

Kraut v. Rachford, 51 Ill.App.3d 206 (1st Dist. 1977).

CROSS REF.: 6:140 (Education of Homeless Children), 7:50 (School Admissions and Student Transfers To and From Non-District Schools), 7:70 (Attendance and Truancy)

Adopted: March 8, 2022

STUDENT RECORDS

The following records are kept for students enrolled in the Urbana schools. They are available for review by parents and secondary students as described below:

CUMULATIVE RECORD FOLDER

- WHERE STORED: In the administrative offices at each school.
- PROCEDURE FOR STUDENT OR PARENT REVIEW: Contact the building administrators

- and set up appointments to review content of the folder. Administrators may ask a counselor (in secondary schools) or classroom teacher (in elementary schools) to conduct the review.
- INFORMATION STORED: Student's name, date and place of birth, birth certificate number, race, name, address and phone number of parents or guardian/custodian, designation of guardian, special health information, attendance record, standards-based progress reports, middle school course and grade record retained until graduation at grade 12, high school official transcript, names of previous schools attended, achievement test scores, student personnel record, notice of psychological report and special education folder on file (when applicable), record reviews and record of information released. (All records from previous districts not retained by Urbana School District #116 will be returned to parents within thirty (30) days.)

HEALTH INFORMATION

- WHERE STORED: In the student record office at Central Office for students in Early Childhood through grade 8; in administrative office at the high school for students in grades 9-12
- PROCEDURE FOR STUDENT OR PARENT REVIEW: Contact the building administrator to set up an appointment. The building administrator will request this information for you.
- INFORMATION STORED: Physical examination, vaccination and immunization records, special health problems and/or alerts. (Special health problems and/or alerts are also noted in cum folder.)

COUNSELOR RECORDS

- WHERE STORED: In the counselor's office.
- PROCEDURE FOR STUDENT OR PARENT REVIEW: Contact counselor to set up an appointment. Contact may be made through the building administrator.
- INFORMATION STORED: At discretion of counselor generally only minimal information is recorded such as dates of sessions. All records are destroyed when a student is no longer in attendance at the building.

SUSPENSION OR EXPULSION RECORDS

- WHERE STORED: In the administrative office of each school or in district central offices.
- PROCEDURE FOR STUDENT OR PARENT REVIEW: Contact district administrative offices and set up an appointment.
- INFORMATION STORED: Records of suspensions are maintained through the end of the current year and destroyed at the end of each year. Records of expulsions are part of the official board minutes. A draft of the minutes of the expulsion hearing is attached to the official board minutes. No other record of expulsions is kept. Official board minutes may be reviewed through the superintendent's office.

SPECIAL EDUCATION RECORDS

- WHERE STORED: With building principal and/or director of student services.
- PROCEDURE FOR STUDENT OR PARENT REVIEW: Arrangements for review may be made through the director of student services, special education teacher or the building administrator.
- INFORMATION STORED: Special Education Evaluation records, reports of specialized evaluations, I.E.P.'s, staffing reports, specialized tests, and other related information.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS

- WHERE STORED: Current records are stored in the administrative offices at each school and reported monthly to the district's central office. Attendance records from previous years are stored in the central office. Individual records will be kept in the student cumulative record folder.
- PROCEDURE FOR STUDENT OR PARENT REVIEW: If current records are to be reviewed, the building administrator should be contacted. If records from previous years are to be reviewed, it will be necessary to set up an appointment with the district central administration staff.
- INFORMATION STORED: Daily record of school attendance.

FAMILY EDUCATIONAL RIGHTS AND PRIVACY ACT (FERPA)

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 U.S.C. § 1232g; 34 CFR Part 99) is a Federal law that protects the privacy of student education records. The law applies to all schools that receive funds under an applicable program of the U.S. Department of Education.

FERPA gives parents certain rights with respect to their children's education records. These rights transfer to the student when he or she reaches the age of 18 or attends a school beyond the high school level. Students to whom the rights have transferred are "eligible students."

- Parents or eligible students have the right to inspect and review the student's education records
 maintained by the school. Schools are not required to provide copies of records unless, for reasons
 such as great distance, it is impossible for parents or eligible students to review the records. Schools
 may charge a fee for copies.
- Parents or eligible students have the right to request that a school correct records which they believe to be inaccurate or misleading. If the school decides not to amend the record, the parent or eligible student then has the right to a formal hearing. After the hearing, if the school still decides not to amend the record, the parent or eligible student has the right to place a statement with the record setting forth his or her view about the contested information.
- Generally, schools must have written permission from the parent or eligible student in order to release any information from a student's education record. However, FERPA allows schools to disclose those records, without consent, to the following parties or under the following conditions (34 CFR § 99.31):
 - o School officials with legitimate educational interest;
 - Other schools to which a student is transferring;
 - o Specified officials for audit or evaluation purposes;
 - o Appropriate parties in connection with financial aid to a student;
 - o Organizations conducting certain studies for or on behalf of the school;
 - Accrediting organizations;
 - o To comply with a judicial order or lawfully issued subpoena;
 - o Appropriate officials in cases of health and safety emergencies; and
 - o State and local authorities, within a juvenile justice system, pursuant to specific State law.

For additional information about USD116 Board Policy regarding FERPA, please see section 7:15 Student and Family Privacy Rights which may be found under the Board Policy section of the district website.

Schools may disclose, without consent, "directory" information such as a student's name, address, telephone number, date and place of birth, honors and awards, and dates of attendance. However, schools must tell parents and eligible students about directory information and allow parents and eligible students a reasonable amount of time to request that the school not disclose directory information about them. Schools must notify parents and eligible students annually of their rights under FERPA. The actual means of notification (special letter, inclusion in a PTA bulletin, student handbook, or newspaper article) is left to the discretion of each school.

STUDENT DIRECTORY INFORMATION

As established by District Policy and State Statute, the school may not divulge to any person, agency or organization any information contained in school records without written consent, other than to: school officials within the district who are directly involved with the student; the State Superintendent's Office as stipulated by statute; other school districts where a student has enrolled, and Federal agencies as specified by statute.

Student ID #, School, Grade Level, Date of Birth, Name, addresses and telephone numbers of students and parents may be released to non-commercial agencies or organizations. Requests for this information will be honored when it is felt to be in the interest of the families with children enrolled in the schools.

If you as a parent wish to have your name and your child's name excluded from directory listings of this type, you are asked to return the form below. If excluded, your child's name will not be on any general mailings, such as lists to service organizations, colleges and universities, etc.

I hereby request that directory	FROM STUDENT DIRECTORY information for the student(s) listed to various non-commercial agencies	
(student)	(grade)	(school)
(student)	(grade)	(school)
(student)	(grade)	(school)
parent-	-guardian signature	date

Return this form to: Dr. Kimberly Norton

Assistant Superintendent of Student Learning

Urbana School District #116

1101 East University Avenue, Suite B

Urbana, IL 61802

INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

It is the responsibility of parents to inform the building principal or assistant principal if they would prefer their children not use or observe instructional materials that have content that might be offensive to them. The teachers are professional and conscientious, but we recognize that families have a right to determine the appropriateness of materials for their children. It is the responsibility of students or their parents to inform classroom teachers when they need to use an alternative set of materials for personal reasons. This complies with Board of Education policy 6:40, Curriculum Development.

A comprehensive list of core materials and major works that may be used for instruction can be found at each building and on the district website: http://www.usd116.org under the Curriculum link. This list is reviewed by the Board of Education on an annual basis. This complies with Board of Education policy 6:210, Instructional Materials.

SPECIAL EDUCATION PROGRAMS AND SERVICES

The Department of Student Services provides programs for students with disabilities, ages 3 to 22. A full range of special programs are available through the following programs and services:

- Services for Students with Intellectual Disabilities
- Services for Students with Emotional Disabilities
- Services for Students with Learning Disabilities
- Services for Students with Developmental Disabilities
- Services for Students with Speech/Language Impairments
- Services for Students with Severe/Profound Multiple Disabilities
- Services for Students who are Deaf/Hard of Hearing
- Services for Students who are Visually Impaired
- Services for Students with Physical Disabilities
- Services for Students with Health Impairments
- Home/Hospital Instruction
- School Social Work Services
- School Psychological Services
- Occupational Therapy
- Physical Therapy
- Alternative Special Education Programs

You should also be made aware that if you object to the special education services that are being proposed for your child, you may request a meeting to review the individualized educational program. This review will include the professional staff who provided information upon which this decision was made. You or your representative may, prior to the local review conference, request the opportunity to examine all information on which the placement decision was made. In summary, it is important that you know and understand that you have the following rights:

- 1. To inspect and review records.
- 2. To be notified before the school initiates or changes (or refuses to initiate or change) the identification, evaluation or placement of your child.

- 3. To an independent educational evaluation.
- 4. To give consent before an evaluation is conducted and before initial placement is made in special education.
- 5. To request an impartial due process hearing to question the agency's identification, evaluation or placement of your child or to question the agency's provision of a free appropriate public education.
- 6. To have a full and individual evaluation of your child's educational needs.
- 7. To have your child educated with non-disabled children to the maximum extent possible.
- 8. To restrict access to your child's records by withholding consent to disclose records.
- 9. To revoke your consent for special education and related services at any time.

Your child's educational status will not be changed without your being informed prior to the change.

If you have a child between the ages of 3 and 22 years of age and suspect that they may have special education needs, or if you have questions concerning special education programs and/or services, contact the building principal of the school your child attends or:

Ms. Beth Ladd, Executive Director of Student Services Urbana School District #116 1101 East University Avenue, Suite B Urbana, IL 61802 217-384-3645 - ebadd@usd116.org

Dvslexia

According to the International Dyslexia Association definition as adopted by the Illinois State Board of Education, Dyslexia is a specific learning disability that is neurobiological in origin. It is characterized by difficulties with accurate and/or fluent word recognition and by poor spelling and decoding abilities. These difficulties typically result from a deficit in the phonological component of language that is often unexpected in relation to other cognitive abilities and the provision of effective classroom instruction. Secondary consequences may include problems in reading comprehension and reduced reading experience that can impede growth of vocabulary and background knowledge.

In addition to adopting the definition listed above, school code states that

- Dyslexia is one of a number of disorders included as a specific learning disability that may adversely affect the student's educational performance and result in the child's eligibility for special education and related services.
- Each child suspected of having dyslexia or identified as dyslexic shall be referred for an evaluation in accordance with the requirements of 34 CFR 300.311 and Subpart B of this Part.

While the school district does not diagnose dyslexia as part of our screening, assessment, special eligibility determination processes, we can and should take a student's unique/specific learning needs into account when addressing his or her instructional needs. If you suspect your child has dyslexia, please contact the school psychologist to schedule a meeting to discuss the concern, review available information, problem solve, and consider whether special education evaluation is warranted.

Medicaid Billing

State and federal laws allow school districts to be Medicaid service providers for children with disabilities who are eligible under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and the Medicaid program. This means that our school district can bill for federal reimbursement for related health services stated in your child's IEP. School claims for Medicaid payment for these services will not affect your child's receipt of health services from your family physician or other health providers in any way.

Our school district cannot submit claims to Medicaid for your child's services if you do not want us to do so. Our district's billing Medicaid for these services will not change your child's IEP services or your right to receive Medicaid services as long as your son or daughter continues to be eligible for Medicaid services.

If you wish to deny the district's access to reimbursement from Medicaid for health services in your child's IEP, you should do so in writing. Our school district will continue to bill Medicaid for special services unless you notify us in writing that you wish us to stop. If you wish to stop the district from submitting claims to Medicaid for your child, send a written statement to Todd Taylor, Assistant Superintendent for Student Services, Urbana School District 116, 1101 E. University Ave., Urbana, IL 61802.

Related Service Logs

The District maintains related service logs that document the type and number of minutes of related service administered under a student's individualized education program (IEP). These related service logs will be available to parents/guardians at a student's annual review IEP meeting. Parents/guardians may also request a copy of any IEP related service log maintained for their child. Please direct any requests for a copy of a related service log for your child to your building administrator or your child's special education case manager.

BEHAVIORAL INTERVENTIONS FOR STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES

BP 7:230 Misconduct by Students with Disabilities

Behavioral Interventions

Behavioral interventions shall be used with students with disabilities to promote and strengthen desirable behaviors and reduce identified inappropriate behaviors. The School Board will establish and maintain a committee to develop, implement, and monitor procedures on the use of behavioral interventions for children with disabilities.

Discipline of Special Education Students

The District shall comply with the Individuals With Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 and the Illinois State Board of Education's *Special Education* rules when disciplining special education students. No special education student shall be expelled if the student's particular act of gross disobedience or misconduct is a manifestation of his or her disability.

LEGAL REF.:

Individuals With Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004, <u>20 U.S.C. §§1412</u>, <u>1413</u>, and <u>1415</u>. Gun-Free Schools Act, 20 U.S.C. §7151*et seq*.

34 C.F.R. §§300.101, 300.530 - 300.536.

105 ILCS 5/10-22.6 and 5/14-8.05.

23 Ill.Admin.Code §226.400.

Honig v. Doe, 108 S.Ct. 592 (1988).

CROSS REF.: 2:150 (Committees), 6:120 (Education of Children with Disabilities), 7:130 (Student Rights and Responsibilities), 7:190 (Student Behavior), 7:200 (Suspension Procedures), 7:210 (Expulsion Procedures),

7:220 (Bus Conduct)

Adopted: October 19, 2021

EDUCATION OF CHILDREN WITH DISABILITIES PROVISION OF FREE APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION

The Urbana School District #116 provides a free appropriate public education in the least restrictive environment and necessary related services to all children with disabilities enrolled in the District, as required by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), The School Code, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and the Americans with Disabilities Act. This policy applies to children between the ages of 3 and 21 (inclusive) for whom it is determined, through definitions and procedures described in the Illinois State Board of Education's Special Education rules, that special education services are needed.

It is the intent of the District to ensure that students who are disabled within the definition of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 are identified, evaluated, and provided with appropriate educational services. Students may be disabled within the meaning of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act even though they do not require services pursuant to the IDEA.

For students eligible for services under IDEA, the District follows procedures for identification, evaluation, placement, and delivery of services to children with disabilities provided in the Illinois State Board of Education's Special Education rules. For those students who are not eligible for services under IDEA, but, because of disability as defined by section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the District implements a system of procedural safeguards. The safeguards cover students' identification, evaluation, and educational placement. This system includes notice, an opportunity for the student's parent(s)/guardian to examine relevant records, an impartial hearing with opportunity for participation by the student's parent(s)/guardian, representation by counsel, and a review procedure.

If necessary students may also be placed in non-public special education programs or education facilities.

IDENTIFICATION, ASSESSMENT, AND PROVISIONS FOR SPECIAL EDUCATION SERVICES TO ELIGIBLE CHILDREN NOT ENROLLED IN THE DISTRICT

The District is responsible for the identification, assessment, and provision of special education services to students attending non-public schools located within the city of Urbana.

ACCOMMODATING INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES

In accordance with school board policy, individuals with disabilities shall be provided an opportunity to participate in all school-sponsored services, programs, or activities and will not be subject to illegal discrimination. When appropriate, the District may provide to persons with disabilities aids, benefits, or services that are separate or different from, but as effective as, those provided to others.

The District will provide auxiliary aids and services when necessary to afford individuals with disabilities equal opportunity to participate in or enjoy the benefits of a service, program, or activity.

Individuals with disabilities should notify their school building principal if they have a disability that will require special assistance or services and, if so, what services are required. This notification should occur as far in advance as possible of the school-sponsored function, program, or meeting. In general, requests for accommodation that are made less than seven (7) school days before the date of a school-sponsored function, activity, or meeting may not be honored depending on the logistical complexity of the accommodation requested.

Individuals with disabilities may allege a violation of this policy or federal law by reporting it to the Superintendent or designated Title II Coordinator, or by filing a grievance under the Uniform Grievance Procedure.

HOME AND HOSPITAL INSTRUCTION

A student who is absent or projected to be absent from school for a period of 10 days or more during the school year on an ongoing or intermittent basis, because of a medical condition may be eligible for instruction in the student's home or hospital. Eligibility will be determined by the Illinois State Board of Education rule governing the continuum of placement options for home/hospital services. Appropriate educational services shall begin as soon as eligibility is established. Instructional or related services for a student receiving special education services will be determined by the student's individualized education program. To access home hospital instruction, please contact your building principal to obtain a Medical Certification for Home Hospital Instruction form to be completed by your child's physician, licensed physician's assistant, or licensed advanced practice nurse.

A student who is unable to attend school because of pregnancy will be provided home instruction before the birth of the child if the student's physician indicates, in writing, that she is medically unable to attend regular classroom instruction as well for up to 3 months after the child's birth or a miscarriage.

Periodic conferences will be held between appropriate school personnel, parents and hospital staff to coordinate course work and facilitate a student's return to school.

IL STATE GUIDELINES REGARDING MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES FOR CHILDREN AND ADOLESCENTS

Consent for Treatment:

- Children under the age of 12 must have a parent of guardian sign a consent for treatment
- Adolescents 12 to 17 years old can request up to 8 confidential therapy sessions of no more than 90 minutes in length, without parent or guardian consent. Once a minor reaches age 17 (and above), there is no limit on the number of sessions.
- When the parents of a child under the age of 12 are divorced and there is joint custody, either parent can consent to treatment. The only time a parent cannot consent to treatment is when the parental rights have been terminated.

Release of Information:

- The parent or guardian of a child under the age of 12 must sign authorization to release information concerning the child
- Adolescents 12 and over may authorize releases of information without parental/guardian signature.
- If the child has an appointed guardian, other that DCFS, the person signing consents and releases will need proof of guardianship
- Any parent of a child under the age of 12 has a right to see that child's record unless their parental rights have been terminated

EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES

BP 7:10 Equal Educational Opportunities

Equal educational and extracurricular opportunities shall be available for all students without regard to color, race, nationality, religion, sex, sexual orientation, ancestry, age, physical or mental disability, gender, gender identity, (whether or not traditionally associated with the student's sex assigned at birth), gender expression, status of being homeless, immigration status, order of protection status, actual or potential marital or parental status, including pregnancy. Further, the District will not knowingly enter into agreements with any entity or any individual that discriminates against students on the basis of sex or any other protected status, except that the District remains viewpoint neutral when granting access to school facilities under Board of Education policy 8:20, *Community Use of School Facilities*. Any student may file a discrimination grievance by using Board policy 2:260, *Uniform Grievance Procedure*.

Sex Equity

No student shall, based on sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender expression be denied equal access to programs, activities, services, or benefits or be limited in the exercise of any right, privilege, advantage, or denied equal access to educational and extracurricular programs and activities. Students shall be supported in a manner consistent with their gender identity. This will include, but not be limited to, use of restrooms, locker rooms, and other facilities that correspond with the student's gender identity.

Any student may file a sex equity complaint by using Board policy 2:260, *Uniform Grievance Procedure*. A student may appeal the Board's resolution of the complaint to the Regional Superintendent (pursuant to 105 ILCS 5/3-10) and, thereafter, to the State Superintendent of Education (pursuant to 105 ILCS 5/2-3.8).

Administrative Implementation

The Superintendent shall appoint a Nondiscrimination Coordinator, who also serves as the District's Title IX Coordinator. The Superintendent and Building Principal shall use reasonable measures to inform staff members and students of this policy and related grievance procedures.

LEGAL REF.:

20 U.S.C. §1681et seq., Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; 34 C.F.R. Part 106.

29 U.S.C. §791et seq., Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

42 U.S.C. §11431et seq., McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act.

Good News Club v. Milford Central Sch., 533 U.S. 98 (2001).

Ill. Constitution, Art. I, §18.

105 ILCS 5/3.25b, 5/3.25d(b), 5/10-20.12, 5/10-20.60, 5/10-20.63, 5/10-22.5, and 5/27-1.

775 ILCS 5/1-101 et seq., Illinois Human Rights Act.

775 ILCS 35/5, Religious Freedom Restoration Act.

23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.240 and Part 200.

CROSS REF.: 2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 2:265 (Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure), 6:65 (Student Social and Emotional Development), 7:20 (Harassment of Students Prohibited), 7:50 (School Admissions and Student Transfers To and From Non-District Schools), 7:60 (Residence), 7:130 (Student Rights and Responsibilities), 7:160 (Student Appearance), 7:180 (Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment), 7:185 (Teen Dating Violence Prohibited), 7:250 (Student Support Services), 7:330 (Student Use of Buildings - Equal Access), 7:340 (Student Records), 8:20 (Community Use of School Facilities)

Adopted: March 8, 2022

GRADING AND PROMOTION

BP 6:280 Grading and Promotion

The Superintendent shall establish a system of grading and reporting academic achievement to students and their parents/guardians. The system shall also determine when promotion and graduation requirements are met. The decision to promote a student to the next grade level shall be based on successful completion of the curriculum, attendance, and performance on the standardized tests required by the Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE) and/or other assessments. A student shall not be promoted based upon age or any other social reason not related to academic performance. The administration shall determine remedial assistance for a student who is not promoted.

Every teacher shall maintain an evaluation record for each student in the teacher's classroom. A District administrator cannot change the final grade assigned by the teacher without notifying the teacher. Reasons for changing a student's final grade include:

- A miscalculation of test scores,
- A technical error in assigning a particular grade or score,
- The teacher agrees to allow the student to do extra work that may impact the grade,
- An inappropriate grading system used to determine the grade, or
- An inappropriate grade based on an appropriate grading system.

Should a grade change be made, the administrator making the change must sign the changed record.

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/2-3.64a-5, 5/10-20.9a, 5/10-21.8, and 5/27-27.

CROSS REF.: 6:110 (Programs for Students At Risk of Academic Failure and/or

Dropping Out of School and Graduation Incentives Program), 6:300 (Graduation Requirements), 6:340 (Student Testing and Assessment Program), 7:50 (School Admissions and Student Transfers To and From Non-District Schools)

Adopted: June 16, 2020

ACCELERATED PLACEMENT PROGRAM

BP 6:135 Accelerated Placement Program

The District provides an Accelerated Placement Program (APP). The APP advances the District's goal of providing educational programs with opportunities for each student to develop to his or her maximum potential. The APP provides an educational setting with curriculum options usually reserved for students who are older or in higher grades than the student participating in the APP. APP options include, but may not be limited to: (a) accelerating a student in a single subject; (b) other grade-level acceleration; and (c) early entrance to kindergarten or first grade. Participation in the APP is open to all students who demonstrate high ability and

who may benefit from accelerated placement. It is not limited to students who have been identified as gifted and talented. Eligibility to participate in the District's APP shall not be conditioned upon the protected classifications identified in Board policy 7:10, *Equal Educational Opportunities*, or any factor other than the student's identification as an accelerated learner.

The Superintendent or designee shall implement an APP that includes:

- 1. Decision-making processes that are fair, equitable, and involve multiple individuals, e.g. District administrators, teachers, and school support personnel, and a student's parent(s)/guardian(s);
- 2. Notification processes that notify a student's parent(s)/guardian(s) of a decision affecting a student's participation in the APP;
- 3. Assessment processes that include multiple valid, reliable indicators; and
- 4. By the fall of 2023, the automatic enrollment, in the following school term, of a student into the next most rigorous level of advanced coursework offered by the high school if the student meets or exceeds State standards in English language arts, mathematics, or science on a State assessment administered under 105 ILCS 5/2-3.64a-5, as follows:
 - 1. A student who meets or exceeds State standards in English language arts shall be automatically enrolled into the next most rigorous level of advanced coursework in English, social studies, humanities, or related subjects.
 - 2. A student who meets or exceeds State standards in mathematics shall be automatically enrolled into the next most rigorous level of advanced coursework in mathematics.
 - 3. A student who meets or exceeds State standards in science shall be automatically enrolled into the next most rigorous level of advanced coursework in science.

The Superintendent or designee shall annually notify the community, parent(s)/guardian(s), students, and school personnel about the APP, the process for referring a student for possible evaluation for accelerated placement, and the methods used to determine whether a student is eligible for accelerated placement, including strategies to reach groups of students and families who have been historically underrepresented in accelerated placement programs and advanced coursework. Notification may: (a) include varied communication methods, such as student handbooks and District or school websites; and (b) be provided in multiple languages, as appropriate.

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/14A.

23 Ill.Admin.Code Part 227, Gifted Education.

CROSS REF.: 6:10 (Educational Philosophy and Objectives), 6:130 (Program for the Gifted), 7:10 (Equal Educational Opportunities), 7:50 (School Admissions and Student Transfers To and From Non-District Schools) Adopted: March 8, 2022

SEXUAL HARASSMENT

BP 7:20 Harassment of Students Prohibited

No person, including a School District employee or agent, or student, shall harass, intimidate, or bully a student on the basis of actual or perceived: race; color; national origin; military status; unfavorable discharge status from military service; sex; sexual orientation; gender; gender identity (whether or not traditionally associated with the student's sex assigned at birth); gender-related identity or expression; ancestry; age; religion; physical or mental disability; order of protection status; status of being homeless; actual or potential marital or parental

status, including pregnancy; association with a person or group with one or more of the aforementioned actual or perceived characteristics; or any other distinguishing characteristic. The District will not tolerate harassing, intimidating conduct, or bullying whether verbal, physical, sexual, or visual, that affects the tangible benefits of education, that unreasonably interferes with a student's educational performance, or that creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment. Examples of prohibited conduct include name-calling, using derogatory slurs, stalking, sexual violence, causing psychological harm, threatening or causing physical harm, threatened or actual destruction of property, or wearing or possessing items depicting or implying hatred or prejudice of one of the characteristics stated above.

Sexual Harassment Prohibited

The District shall provide an educational environment free of verbal, physical, or other conduct or communications constituting harassment on the basis of sex as defined and otherwise prohibited by State and federal law. See policies 2:265, *Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure*, and 2:260, *Uniform Grievance Procedure*.

Making a Report or Complaint

Students are encouraged to promptly report claims or incidences of bullying, intimidation, harassment, sexual harassment, or any other prohibited conduct to the Nondiscrimination Coordinator, Building Principal, Assistant Building Principal, Dean of Students, a Complaint Manager, or any employee with whom the student is comfortable speaking. A student may choose to report to an employee of the student's same gender.

Reports under this policy will be considered a report under Board policy 2:260, *Uniform Grievance Procedure*, and/or Board policy 2:265, *Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure*. The Nondiscrimination Coordinator and/or Complaint Manager shall process and review the report according to the appropriate grievance procedure.

The Superintendent shall insert into this policy the names, office addresses, email addresses, and telephone numbers of the District's current Nondiscrimination Coordinator and Complaint Managers. The Nondiscrimination Coordinator also serves as the District's Title IX Coordinator.

Nondiscrimination Coordinator: Dr. Angi Franklin, Asst. Supt. of Human Resources

1101 East University Ave., Suite B, Urbana, IL 61802

217-384-3641 - afranklin@usd116.org

Complaint Managers: Dr. Angi Franklin, Asst. Supt. of Human Resources

1101 East University Ave., Suite B, Urbana, IL 61802

217-384-3641 - afranklin@usd116.org

Dr. Kimberly Norton, Asst. Supt. of Student Learning

1101 East University Ave., Suite B, Urbana, IL 61802

217-384-3651 - knorton@usd116.org

The Superintendent shall use reasonable measures to inform staff members and students of this policy by including:

1. For students, age-appropriate information about the contents of this policy in the District's student handbook(s), on the District's website, and, if applicable, in any other areas where policies, rules, and standards of conduct are otherwise posted in each school.

2. For staff members, this policy in the appropriate employee handbook(s), if applicable, and/or in any other areas where policies, rules, and standards of conduct are otherwise made available to staff.

Investigation Process

Any District employee who receives a report or complaint of harassment must promptly forward the report or complaint to the Nondiscrimination Coordinator or a Complaint Manager. Any employee who fails to promptly comply may be disciplined, up to and including discharge.

Reports and complaints of harassment will be confidential to the greatest extent practicable, subject to the District's duty to investigate and maintain an educational environment that is productive, respectful, and free of unlawful discrimination, including harassment.

For any report or complaint alleging sexual harassment that, if true, would implicate Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §1681et seq.), the Nondiscrimination Coordinator or designee shall consider whether action under policy 2:265, *Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure*, should be initiated.

For any other alleged student harassment that does not require action under policy 2:265, *Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure*, the Nondiscrimination Coordinator or a Complaint Manager or designee shall consider whether an investigation under policies 2:260, *Uniform Grievance Procedure*, and/or 7:190, *Student Behavior*, should be initiated, regardless of whether a written report or complaint is filed.

Reports That Involve Alleged Incidents of Sexual Abuse of a Child by School Personnel

An *alleged incident of sexual abuse* is an incident of sexual abuse of a child, as defined in <u>720 ILCS</u> <u>5/11-9.1A(b)</u>, that is alleged to have been perpetrated by school personnel, including a school vendor or volunteer, that occurred: on school grounds during a school activity; or outside of school grounds or not during a school activity.

Any complaint alleging an incident of sexual abuse shall be processed and reviewed according to policy 5:90, *Abused and Neglected Child Reporting*. In addition to reporting the suspected abuse, the complaint shall also be processed under policy 2:265, *Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure*, or policy 2:260, *Uniform Grievance Procedure*.

Enforcement

Any District employee who is determined, after an investigation, to have engaged in conduct prohibited by this policy will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including discharge. Any third party who is determined, after an investigation, to have engaged in conduct prohibited by this policy will be addressed in accordance with the authority of the Board in the context of the relationship of the third party to the District, e.g., vendor, parent, invitee, etc. Any District student who is determined, after an investigation, to have engaged in conduct prohibited by this policy will be subject to disciplinary action, including but not limited to, suspension and expulsion consistent with the behavior policy. Any person making a knowingly false accusation regarding prohibited conduct will likewise be subject to disciplinary action.

Retaliation Prohibited

Retaliation against any person for bringing complaints or providing information about harassment is prohibited (see policies 2:260, *Uniform Grievance Procedure*, and 2:265, *Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure*).

Students should report allegations of retaliation to the Building Principal, an administrator, the Nondiscrimination Coordinator, and/or a Complaint Manager.

LEGAL REF.:

20 U.S.C. §1681et seq., Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972; 34 C.F.R. Part 106.

105 ILCS 5/10-20.12, 5/10-22.5, 5/10-23.13, 5/27-1, and 5/27-23.7.

775 ILCS 5/1-101et seq., Illinois Human Rights Act.

23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.240and Part 200.

Davis v. Monroe County Bd. of Educ., 526 U.S. 629 (1999).

Franklin v. Gwinnett Co. Public Schs., 503 U.S. 60 (1992).

Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent Sch. Dist., 524 U.S. 274 (1998).

West v. Derby Unified Sch. Dist. No. 260, 206 F.3d 1358 (10th Cir. 2000).

CROSS REF.: 2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 2:265 (Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure), 4:165 (Awareness and Prevention of Child Sexual Abuse and Grooming Behaviors), 5:20 (Workplace Harassment Prohibited), 5:90 (Abused and Neglected Child Reporting), 7:10 (Equal Educational Opportunities), 7:180 (Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment), 7:185 (Teen Dating Violence Prohibited), 7:190 (Student Behavior), 7:240 (Conduct Code for Participants in Extracurricular Activities)

Adopted: March 8, 2022

BLOODBORNE PATHOGENS

Handling Blood Exposures

The Urbana School District will be following OSHA and Illinois Department of Labor regulations on handling blood exposures. These regulations are designed to protect District employees. Staff members will be wearing protective equipment (vinyl gloves) in dealing with a bleeding student.

It is extremely rare for students to come in contact with someone's blood or body fluids. However, there is no way the school can protect students from each other in every circumstance.

Please help us keep your student safe by:

- 1. Explaining to your student that diseases can be passed by touching blood and other body fluids from others.
- 2. Encourage your student to wash their hands carefully if they accidentally touches blood or other body fluids from others.
- 3. Encourage your student to report immediately any contact they have with blood or body fluids of others.

If you have questions or concerns, please contact the District Nurse at 384-3549.

HEALTH GUIDELINES

• Given COVID-19 and the global pandemic, the district is currently in the process of developing additional health/safety procedures for students in school. At the time of the printing and/or posting of this handbook, those procedures are still being developed. Parents/guardians will receive more

- specific guidance about health/safety protocols and procedures prior to the start of the 2022-2023 school year.
- No child should be sent to school with a fever (temperature above 100 degrees Fahrenheit). If they
 have been sick, they should not return to school until they have been free of fever for 24 hours
 without the aid of fever reducing medications.
- A child with diarrhea should be kept home.
- If vomiting occurs, keep at home until they can eat and keep food down.
- If your child develops a body rash you need to have the doctor diagnose the problem. Please let us know what your doctor says before your child returns to school. There may be times when we will need to request a note from the doctor.
- If your child has strep throat or impetigo, the child needs to be on medication for 24 hours before returning to school.
- When a child has chicken pox, they may return after all the pox are dry and crusted over, usually not sooner than 6 days after it begins.
- Head lice are a nuisance but have not been shown to spread disease. Parents/guardians of a student observed to have nits (lice eggs) or live lice will receive notification and treatment information from staff at that student's school.

ALLERGY ALERT INFORMATION

If your child has been diagnosed with a <u>LIFE THREATENING ALLERGY</u> please notify the Principal in your child's building. You will be provided with the necessary paperwork, so that together we can make arrangements to provide your child with a safe and healthy learning environment. If you have questions or concerns, please feel free to contact the District Nurse at Ph # (217) 384-3549.

MANDATORY HEALTH REQUIREMENTS FOR SCHOOL

PHYSICALS AND IMMUNIZATIONS

A physical exam and immunizations are required to be on file for every child in the school district. Students entering an Urbana School from another school district will have 30 days to comply. If the previous school does not send the physical and immunizations with the records it is the responsibility of the parents or guardians to obtain these documents. If you are a new student from out of state school you will need a Illinois Physical within 30 days of starting.

New physicals are required for early childhood, kindergarten, sixth and ninth grade. The examination must be completed within one year prior to entry into the above grades. *If the child does not have a physical prior to the first day of school, they will not be allowed to attend.* This policy is strictly enforced. Any new students to the school district will still have 30 days to comply with this requirement. Physical forms are available on our website or at the schools.

DENTAL EXAMINATIONS

A dental examination is required for all incoming kindergarten, second, sixth and ninth graders. The examination must be performed by a licensed dentist and a "Proof of Dental Examination Form" must be completed by the dentist. These forms are available on our website or at the schools. The forms must be turned in by May 15th of the current school year. Please note, if your child has had an exam in the last 18 months, the dentist can complete the form based on that appointment. If the school does not have a completed form for your

child, the school can withhold your child's year end report card.

VISION EXAMINATION

A vision examination is required for all incoming kindergartners or children enrolling for the first time in an Illinois public or private school. This examination must be performed by a licensed ophthalmologist, optometrist, or a physician who provides complete eye examinations. These forms are available on our web-site or at the schools. These forms must be completed by October 15th of the current school year.

VISION AND HEARING SCREENINGS

Vision and hearing screening will be administered during the 2023-2024 school year according to the Illinois Department of Public Health guidelines. The mandate requires that students are routinely screened for vision in Early Childhood, Kindergarten, second and eighth grade and screened for hearing in Early Childhood, Kindergarten, first, second and third grade. In addition, all students in special education are screened for vision and hearing annually. Students can also be screened by teacher or parent request if the child exhibits symptoms. Any transfer student who has not previously had a vision and hearing screening will also be screened. This is only a screening and does not take the place of an examination by a doctor. A more comprehensive vision exam can be obtained through an optometrist or ophthalmologist.

Your child is not required to participate in the vision screening if you have submitted a report signed by an optometrist or ophthalmologist indicating that your child has had an exam within the previous 12 months. If you wish to exempt your child from the vision screening or would like to know the date the vision screenings will be done at your child's school, please contact the District Nurse's office at 384-3549.

SCHOOL MEDICATION GUIDELINES

BP 7:270 Administering Medicines to Students

Students should not take medication during school hours or during school-related activities unless it is necessary for a student's health and well-being. When a student's licensed health care provider and parent/guardian believe that it is necessary for the student to take a medication during school hours or school-related activities, the parent/guardian must request that the school dispense the medication to the child and otherwise follow the District's procedures on dispensing medication.

The Board of Education authorizes the Superintendent or designee to establish and maintain a parent-teacher advisory committee to develop, in conjunction with the Board guidelines for administering medication in school.

The District will limit its dispensation of medications to situations where failure to take prescribed medication could jeopardize the student's health and/or education and where it is not possible for a parent to administer the medication and the medication cannot be prescribed in doses scheduled for before and after school hours.

No School District employee shall administer to any student, or supervise a student's self-administration of, any prescription or non-prescription medication until a completed and signed *School Medication Authorization Form (SMA Form)* is submitted by the student's parent/guardian. Please refer to the following current Agreement between Urbana Education (Support) Association, IEA-NEA and Urbana School District #116 Board of Education.

No student shall possess or consume any prescription or non-prescription medication on school grounds or at a

school-related function other than as provided for in this policy and its implementing procedures.

Nothing in this policy shall prohibit any school employee from providing emergency assistance to students, including administering medication.

The Building Principal shall include this policy in the Student Handbook and shall provide a copy to the parents/guardians of students.

Self-Administration of Medication

A student may possess and self-administer an epinephrine injector, e.g., EpiPen®, and/or asthma medication prescribed for use at the student's discretion, provided the student's parent/guardian has completed and signed an *SMA Form*. The Superintendent or designee will ensure an Emergency Action Plan is developed for each self-administering student.

A student may self-administer medication required under a *qualifying plan*, provided the student's parent/guardian has completed and signed an *SMA Form*. A qualifying plan means: (1) an asthma action plan, (2) an Individual Health Care Action Plan, (3) an Ill. Food Allergy Emergency Action Plan and Treatment Authorization Form, (4) a plan pursuant to Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, or (5) a plan pursuant to the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act.

The District shall incur no liability, except for willful and wanton conduct, as a result of any injury arising from a student's self-administration of medication, including asthma medication or epinephrine injectors, or medication required under a qualifying plan. A student's parent/guardian must indemnify and hold harmless the District and its employees and agents, against any claims, except a claim based on willful and wanton conduct, arising out of a student's self-administration of an epinephrine injector, asthma medication, and/or a medication required under a qualifying plan.

School District Supply of Undesignated Asthma Medication

The Superintendent or designee shall implement 105 ILCS 5/22-30(f) and maintain a supply of undesignated asthma medication in the name of the District and provide or administer them as necessary according to State law. *Undesignated asthma medication* means an asthma medication prescribed in the name of the District or one of its schools. A school nurse or trained personnel, as defined in State law, may administer an undesignated asthma medication to a person when they, in good faith, believe a person is having *respiratory distress*. Respiratory distress may be characterized as *mild-to-moderate* or *severe*. Each building administrator and/or his or her corresponding school nurse shall maintain the names of trained personnel who have received a statement of certification pursuant to State law.

School District Supply of Undesignated Epinephrine Injectors

The Superintendent or designee shall implement 105 ILCS 5/22-30(f) and maintain a supply of undesignated epinephrine injectors in the name of the District and provide or administer them as necessary according to State law. *Undesignated epinephrine injector* means an epinephrine injector prescribed in the name of the District or one of its schools. A school nurse or trained personnel, as defined in State law, may administer an undesignated epinephrine injector to a person when they, in good faith, believe a person is having an anaphylactic reaction.

School District Supply of Undesignated Glucagon

The Superintendent or designee shall implement 105 ILCS 145/27 and maintain a supply of undesignated

glucagon in the name of the District in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.

When a student's prescribed glucagon is not available or has expired, a school nurse or delegated care aide may administer undesignated glucagon only if he or she is authorized to do so by a student's diabetes care plan.

Administration of Medical Cannabis

The Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Program Act allows a *medical cannabis infused product* to be administered to a student by one or more of the following individuals:

- 1. A parent/guardian of a student who is a minor who registers with the Illinois Dept. of Public Health (IDPH) as a *designated caregiver* to administer medical cannabis to their child. A designated caregiver may also be another individual other than the student's parent/guardian. Any designated caregiver must be at least 21 years old and is allowed to administer a *medical cannabis infused product* to a child who is a student on the premises of his or her school or on his or her school bus if:
- a. Both the student and the designated caregiver possess valid registry identification cards issued by IDPH;
- b. Copies of the registry identification cards are provided to the District;
- c. That student's parent/guardian completed, signed, and submitted a *School Medication Authorization Form Medical Cannabis*; and
- d. After administering the product to the student, the designated caregiver immediately removes it from school premises or the school bus.
- 2. A properly trained school nurse or administrator, who shall be allowed to administer the *medical* cannabis infused product to the student on the premises of the child's school, at a school-sponsored activity, or before/after normal school activities, including while the student is in before-school or after-school care on school-operated property or while being transported on a school bus.
- 3. The student him or herself when the self-administration takes place under the direct supervision of a school nurse or administrator.

Medical cannabis infused product (product) includes oils, ointments, foods, and other products that contain usable cannabis but are not smoked or vaped. Smoking and/or vaping medical cannabis is prohibited.

The product may not be administered in a manner that, in the opinion of the District or school, would create a disruption to the educational environment or cause exposure of the product to other students. A school employee shall not be required to administer the product.

Discipline of a student for being administered a product by a designated caregiver, or by a school nurse or administrator, or who self-administers a product under the direct supervision of a school nurse or administrator pursuant to this policy is prohibited. The District may not deny a student attendance at a school solely because he or she requires administration of the product during school hours.

Void Policy

The **School District Supply of Undesignated Asthma Medication** section of the policy is void whenever the Superintendent or designee is, for whatever reason, unable to: (1) obtain for the District a prescription for

undesignated asthma medication from a physician or advanced practice nurse licensed to practice medicine in all its branches, or (2) fill the District's prescription for undesignated school asthma medication.

The **School District Supply of Undesignated Epinephrine Injectors** section of the policy is void whenever the Superintendent or designee is, for whatever reason, unable to: (1) obtain for the District a prescription for undesignated epinephrine injectors from a physician or advanced practice nurse licensed to practice medicine in all its branches, or (2) fill the District's prescription for undesignated school epinephrine injectors.

The **School District Supply of Undesignated Glucagon** section of the policy is void whenever the Superintendent or designee is, for whatever reason, unable to: (1) obtain for the District a prescription for glucagon from a qualifying prescriber, or (2) fill the District's prescription for undesignated school glucagon.

The **Administration of Medical Cannabis** section of the policy is void and the District reserves the right not to implement it if the District or school is in danger of losing federal funding.

Administration of Undesignated Medication

Upon any administration of an undesignated medication permitted by State law, the Superintendent or designee(s) must ensure all notifications required by State law and administrative procedures occur.

Undesignated Medication Disclaimers

Upon implementation of this policy, the protections from liability and hold harmless provisions applicable under State law apply.

No one, including without limitation, parents/guardians of students, should rely on the District for the availability of undesignated medication. This policy does not guarantee the availability of undesignated medications. Students and their parents/guardians should consult their own physician regarding these medication(s).

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/10-20.14b, 5/10-22.21b, 5/22-30, and 5/22-33.

105 ILCS 145/, Care of Students with Diabetes Act.

410 ILCS 130/, Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Program Act.

720 ILCS 550/, Cannabis Control Act.

23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.540.

CROSS REF.: 7:285 (Anaphylaxis Prevention, Response, and Management Program)

Adopted: September 20, 2022

SCHOOL FEES

Registration Fees

Registration Fees for the 2023-2024 school year are \$100 for all students. Students can receive a fee waiver based on household income if they qualify for free or reduced fees. Students qualifying for reduced fees receive a 50% reduction in registration fees. These fees are prorated depending on the date a student starts their school year and when they qualify for free or reduced fees. Contact the school your student attends for paperwork to qualify for free or reduced fees and the fee waiver. If a student leaves the district during the school year, a refund can be granted for the unused portion of the year. Refunds are only available upon request. Please see the Student Fees Policy on page 57 for more information.

Additional fees may apply for extra-curricular activities, driver's education, physical education uniforms, etc.

Food Service Fees

Urbana School District participates in the Community Eligibility Program which provides one breakfast and lunch at no cost to <u>ALL</u> students enrolled. Additional meals and a la carte items will be sold at regular prices. The following are the prices for food for students for the 2023-2024 school year.

2nd Breakfast	\$2.50
2nd Lunch	\$4.35
Extra Entrée	\$4.35

Student Accident Insurance

Urbana School District #116 does not provide student accident insurance but does offer information regarding such insurance to interested parents if needed. Insurance forms are available at registration and at the school buildings.

STUDENT FEES POLICY

BP 4:140 Waiver of Student Fees

The Superintendent will recommend to the Board of Education a schedule of fees, if any, to be charged students for the use of textbooks, consumable materials, extracurricular activities, and other school student fees. Students must also pay fines for the loss of or damage to school books or other school-owned materials.

All school student fees and fines as defined by the Ill. State Board of Education (ISBE) are waived for students who meet the eligibility criteria for a waiver contained in this policy.

Notification

The Superintendent shall ensure that a notice of waiver applicability is provided to parents/guardians with every bill for fees and/or fines, and that applications for waivers are widely available and distributed according to State law and ISBE rule and that provisions for assisting parents/guardians in completing the application are available.

Eligibility Criteria

A student shall be eligible for a fee and fine waiver when:

- 1. The student currently lives in a household that meets the same income guidelines, with the same limits based on household size, that are used for the federal free meals program;
- 2. The student's parents/guardians are veterans or active-duty military personnel with income at or below 200% of the federal poverty line; or
- The student is homeless, as defined in the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. §11434a).
 Verification

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a process for determining a student's eligibility for a waiver of fees and fines in accordance with State law requirements.

If a student receiving a waiver is found to be no longer eligible during the school year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the student's parent/guardian and charge the student a prorated amount based upon the number of school days remaining in the school year.

Determination and Appeal

Within 30 calendar days after the receipt of a waiver request, the Superintendent or designee shall mail a notice to the parent/guardian whenever a waiver request is denied. The denial notice shall include: (1) the reason for the denial, (2) the process and timelines for making an appeal, and (3) a statement that the parent/guardian may reapply for a waiver any time during the school year if circumstances change. If the denial is appealed, the District shall follow the procedures for the resolution of appeals as provided in the Illinois State Board of Education rule on waiver of fees.

LEGAL REF.:

42 U.S.C. §11434a, McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act.

105 ILCS 5/10-20.13, 5/10-22.25, 5/27-24.2, and 5/28-19.2.

23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.245 [may contain unenforceable provisions].

CROSS REF.: 4:130 (Free and Reduced-Price Food Services), 6:140 (Education of Homeless Children)

Adopted: March 21, 2023

HOMELESS STUDENTS

BP 6:140 Education of Homeless Children

Each child of a homeless individual and each homeless youth has equal access to the same free, appropriate public education as provided to other children and youths, including a public pre-school education. A *homeless child* is defined as provided in the McKinney Homeless Assistance Act and the Education for Homeless Children Act. The Superintendent or designee shall act as or appoint a Liaison for Homeless Children to coordinate this policy's implementation.

A homeless child may attend the District school that the child attended when permanently housed or in which the child was last enrolled. A homeless child living in any District school's attendance area may attend that school.

The Superintendent or designee shall review and revise rules or procedures that may act as barriers to the enrollment of homeless children and youths. In reviewing and revising such procedures, consideration shall be given to issues concerning transportation, immunization, residency, birth certificates, school records and other documentation, and guardianship. Transportation shall be provided in accordance with the McKinney Homeless Assistance Act and State law. The Superintendent or designee shall give special attention to ensuring the enrollment and attendance of homeless children and youths who are not currently attending school. If a child is denied enrollment or transportation under this policy, the Liaison for Homeless Children shall immediately refer the child or his or her parent/guardian to the ombudsperson appointed by the Regional Superintendent and provide the child or his or her parent/guardian with a written explanation for the denial. Whenever a child and his or her parent/guardian who initially share the housing of another person due to loss of housing, economic hardship, or a similar hardship continue to share the housing, the Liaison for Homeless Children shall, after the passage of 18 months and annually thereafter, conduct a review as to whether such hardship continues to exist in accordance with State law.

LEGAL REF.:

42 U.S.C. §11431 et seg., McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act.

105 ILCS 45/, Education for Homeless Children Act.

CROSS REF.: 2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 4:110 (Transportation), 7:10 (Equal Educational Opportunities), 7:30 (Student Assignment and Intra-District Transfer), 7:50 (School Admissions and Student Transfers To and From Non-District Schools), 7:60 (Residence), 7:100 (Health, Eye, and Dental Examinations; Immunizations; and Exclusion of Students)

Adopted: September 20, 2022

FACILITIES SERVICES

Integrated Pest Management Program

TO: Parents/Guardians

FROM: Piper Harvey, Administrative Assistant, Facilities Services

RE: Pesticide Registration

Urbana School District #116 has implemented an Integrated Pest Management Program (IPM) which incorporates building maintenance, and physical barriers as the District preferred method of pest control.

Although we have no intention of spraying with pesticides, in the unlikely event that this is found necessary, we have created a voluntary registration process. By submitting your student's name, school and grade, your name, address, phone number and email address to pandfcontrol@usd116.org, you are asking to be notified two (2) days prior to the application of any airborne pesticides on the interior of the buildings, and four (4) days prior to the application of any exterior pesticides to our grounds. In the event of an extreme emergency when a pesticide must be used immediately, you would be notified as soon as possible.

If you have any questions, please give me a call at 217-384-3662.

Sincerely,
Piper Harvey
Administrative Assistant
Facilities Services

BP 4:160 Environmental Quality of Buildings and Grounds

The Superintendent shall take all reasonable measures to protect: (1) the safety of District personnel, students, and visitors on District premises from risks associated with hazardous materials and (2) the environmental quality of the District's buildings and grounds.

Pesticides

Restricted use pesticides will not be applied on or within 500 feet of school property during normal school hours. Before pesticides are used on District premises, the Superintendent or designee shall notify employees and parents/guardians of students as required by the Structural Pest Control Act, <u>225 ILCS 235/</u>, and the Lawn Care Products Application and Notice Act, <u>415 ILCS 65/</u>.

Coal Tar Sealant

Beginning on 1-1-23, before coal tar-based sealant products or high polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbon sealant products are used on District premises, the Superintendent or designee shall notify employees and parents/guardians of students in writing or by telephone as required by the Coal Tar Sealant Disclosure Act.

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/10-20.17a; 5/10-20.48.

29 C.F.R. §1910.1030, Occupational Exposure to Bloodborne Pathogens, as adopted by the Illinois Department of Labor, 56 Ill.Admin.Code §350.700(b).

29 C.F.R. §1910.1200, Occupational Safety and Health Administration Hazard Communication Standards, as adopted by 820 ILCS 255/1.5, Toxic Substances Disclosure to Employees Act.

20 ILCS 3130/, Green Buildings Act.

105 ILCS 135/, Toxic Art Supplies in Schools Act.

105 ILCS 140/, Green Cleaning School Act.

225 ILCS 235/, Structural Pest Control Act.

415 ILCS 60/14, Illinois Pesticide Act.

415 ILCS 65/, Lawn Care Products Application and Notice Act.

410 ILCS 170/, Coal Tar Sealant Disclosure Act.

820 ILCS 255/, Toxic Substances Disclosure to Employees Act. (inoperative)

23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.330.

CROSS REF.: 4:150 (Facility Management and Building Programs), 4:170 (Safety)

Adopted: March 8, 2022

NOTIFICATION TO PARENTS AND EMPLOYEES

In accordance with the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (AHERA) the Board of Education of District #116 has notified workers, building occupants and their legal guardians of activities related to asbestos containing building materials in the schools. District #116 previously submitted inspection reports and management plans to the Illinois Department of Public Health as required by the Federal and State Regulations. Copies of these approved reports and the management plans are available for inspection during normal office hours in the office of each school in the district. These reports include response actions, post response action activities, reinspections, and periodic surveillance.

Periodic surveillance activities are conducted to examine materials identified as asbestos containing and to record any changes in condition, which might necessitate a change to a specific response action. Periodic surveillances are conducted at least every 6 months as long as asbestos materials remain in each building.

All School District # 116 maintenance personnel have received the required asbestos awareness training.

District #116 will continue its efforts to maintain all asbestos containing materials remaining in an intact state and undamaged condition and will voluntarily remove asbestos materials in compliance with Federal and State regulations in conjunction with planned renovation work as funds become available.

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

Director of Facilities Services

July 1, 2023

VOLUNTEER INFORMATION

Volunteering in Urbana School District 116 Schools

Screening Volunteers

Any individual who volunteers more than three days in any of the District's schools throughout the school year is required to submit a criminal history records check. For purposes of this policy, "volunteer" includes, but is not limited to, mentors, parents, grandparents, college students, student teachers, retired teachers, and any other individual who provides services in the District's schools voluntarily three or more times in a school year. If the volunteer is assigned to more than one school, the number of times worked by the individual shall be calculated cumulatively.

The criminal history records check shall be performed on each volunteer covered by this policy prior to the individual being allowed to serve as a volunteer in any of the District's schools. Authorization for the check shall be furnished by the volunteer. These individuals shall provide a written authorization, which includes name, sex, race, date of birth, social security number, possible fingerprint images, and other identifiers, which shall be submitted to the Illinois State Police and the Federal Bureau of Investigation. The Board President or designee will keep any conviction record confidential and share it only with the Superintendent or designee. A copy of the record of convictions obtained from the Illinois State Police and the Federal Bureau of Investigation shall be provided to the volunteer.

The District retains the right to refuse the services of any individual who wishes to volunteer with the District.

The Superintendent shall further perform a check of the Statewide Sex Offender Database and Violent Offender Against Youth Database (when available) on each volunteer who works in the District's schools throughout the year. The Superintendent or designee shall notify a volunteer if the volunteer is identified in either database.

No individual who is a "sex offender", as defined by the Sex Offender Registration Act, or a "violent offender against youth", as defined in the Child Murderer and Violent Offender Against Youth Registration Act, may serve as a volunteer in the District.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS

BP 8:30 Visitors to and Conduct on School Property

The following definitions apply to this policy:

School property - District and school buildings, grounds, and parking areas; vehicles used for school purposes; and any location used for a School Board meeting, school athletic event, or other school-sponsored or school-sanctioned events or activities.

Visitor - Any person other than an enrolled student or District employee.

All visitors to school property are required to report to the Building Principal's office and receive permission to remain on school property. All visitors must sign a visitors' log, show identification, and wear a visitor's badge. When leaving the school, visitors must return their badge. On those occasions when large groups of parents/guardians, friends, and/or community members are invited onto school property or when community members are attending Board meetings, visitors are not required to sign in but must follow school officials' instructions. Persons on school property without permission will be directed to leave and may be subject to criminal prosecution.

Except as provided in the next paragraph, any person wishing to confer with a staff member should contact that staff member to make an appointment. Conferences with teachers are held, to the extent possible, outside school hours or during the teacher's conference/preparation period.

Requests to access a school building, facility, and/or educational program, or to interview personnel or a student for purposes of assessing the student's special education needs, should be made at the appropriate building. Access shall be facilitated according to guidelines from the Superintendent or designee.

The School District expects mutual respect, civility, and orderly conduct among all people on school property or at a school event. No person on school property or at a school event (including visitors, students, and employees) shall perform any of the following acts:

- 1. Strike, injure, threaten, harass, or intimidate a staff member, Board member, sports official or coach, or any other person.
- 2. Behave in an unsportsmanlike manner, or use vulgar or obscene language.
- 3. Unless specifically permitted by State law, possess a weapon, any object that can reasonably be considered a weapon or looks like a weapon, or any dangerous device.
- 4. Damage or threaten to damage another's property.
- 5. Damage or deface school property.
- 6. Violate any Illinois law, or town or county ordinance.
- 7. Smoke or otherwise use tobacco products.
- 8. Consume, possess, distribute, or be impaired by or under the influence of an alcoholic beverage, cannabis, other lawful product, or illegal drug.
- 9. Be present when the person's alcoholic beverage, cannabis, other lawful product, or illegal drug consumption is detectible, regardless of when and/or where the use occurred.
- 10. Use or possess medical cannabis, unless he or she has complied with policy 7:270, *Administering Medicines to Students*, implementing *Ashley's Law*.
- 11. Impede, delay, disrupt, or otherwise interfere with any school activity or function (including

- using cellular phones in a disruptive manner).
- 12. Enter upon any portion of school premises at any time for purposes other than those that are lawful and authorized by the Board.
- 13. Operate a motor vehicle: (a) in a risky manner, (b) in excess of 20 miles per hour, or (c) in violation of an authorized District employee's directive.
- 14. Operate a bicycle, roller-blades, roller-skates, or skateboards on school grounds in a manner that endangers the safety of self or others.
- 15. Violate other District policies or regulations, or a directive from an authorized security officer or District employee.
- 16. Engage in any conduct that interferes with, disrupts, or adversely affects the District or a School function.

Convicted Child Sex Offender

State law prohibits a child sex offender from being present on school property or loitering within 500 feet of school property when persons under the age of 18 are present, unless the offender meets either of the following two exceptions:

- 1. The offender is a parent/guardian of a student attending the school and has notified the Building Principal of his or her presence at the school for the purpose of: (i) attending a conference with school personnel to discuss the progress of his or her child academically or socially, (ii) participating in child review conferences in which evaluation and placement decisions may be made with respect to his or her child regarding special education services, or (iii) attending conferences to discuss other student issues concerning his or her child such as retention and promotion; or
- 2. The offender received permission to be present from the Board, Superintendent, or Superintendent's designee. If permission is granted, the Superintendent or Board President shall provide the details of the offender's upcoming visit to the Building Principal.

In all cases, the Superintendent, or designee who is a certified employee, shall supervise a child sex offender whenever the offender is in a child's vicinity.

Exclusive Bargaining Representative Agent

Please refer to the applicable collective bargaining agreement(s).

For employees whose collective bargaining agreement does not address this subject:

Upon notifying the Building Principal's office, authorized agents of an exclusive bargaining representative will be provided reasonable access to employees in the bargaining unit they represent in accordance with State law. Such access shall be conducted in a manner that will not impede the normal operations of the District.

Enforcement

Any staff member may request identification from any person on school property; refusal to provide such information is a criminal act. The Building Principal or designee shall seek the immediate removal of any person who refuses to provide requested identification.

Any person who engages in conduct prohibited by this policy may be ejected from school property. The person is also subject to being denied admission to school events or meetings for up to one calendar year.

Procedures to Deny Future Admission to School Events or Meetings

Before any person may be denied admission to school events or meetings as provided in this policy, the person has a right to a hearing before the Board. The Superintendent may refuse the person admission pending such hearing. The Superintendent or designee must provide the person with a hearing notice, delivered or sent by certified mail with return receipt requested, at least 10 days before the Board hearing date. The hearing notice must contain:

- 1. The date, time, and place of the Board hearing,
- 2. A description of the prohibited conduct,
- 3. The proposed time period that admission to school events will be denied, and
- 4. Instructions on how to waive a hearing.

LEGAL REF.:

Nuding v. Cerro Gordo Community Unit School Dist., 313 Ill. App.3d 344 (4th Dist. 2000).

20 U.S.C. §7181et seg., Pro-Children Act of 1994.

105 ILCS 5/10-20.5b, 5/22-33, 5/24-25, and 5/27-23.7(a).

115 ILCS 5/3(c), Ill. Educational Labor Relations Act.

410 ILCS 130/, Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Program Act.

430 ILCS 66/, Firearm Concealed Carry Act.

410 ILCS 705/, Cannabis Tax and Regulation Act.

720 ILCS 5/11-9.3.

CROSS REF.: 4:170 (Safety), 5:50 (Drug- and Alcohol-Free Workplace; E-Cigarette;

Tobacco, and Cannabis Prohibition), 6:120 (Education of Children with Disabilities), 6:250 (Community Resource Persons and Volunteers), 7:190 (Student Behavior), 7:270 (Administering Medicines to Students),

8:20 (Community Use of School Facilities)

Adopted: June 16, 2020

Recording of Meetings

Urbana School District 116 does not allow the audio and/or visual recording or transcription of school meetings by parents/guardians or other non-district individuals without five (5) calendar days advance notice. The exception to this five (5) calendar day notice requirement is when a meeting is scheduled less than five days before the meeting is to take place, in which case permission should be requested with as much notice as possible before the meeting.

Permission to record school meetings under this procedure will be granted at the sole discretion of the Superintendent or designee. Requests to record a meeting that do not give the Superintendent or designee sufficient time to consider the request may result in the need for a meeting to be rescheduled.

If permission is granted to record a meeting, USD116 reserves the right to independently record the same meeting. A request will only be honored for the school year during which it is submitted. Parents and guardians must renew their requests in writing at the beginning of each school year. Any recordings maintained by the District shall be considered an educational record consistent with the Illinois School Student Records Act and the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act.

This procedure does not extend to open session Board of Education meetings or other meetings open to the public.

CHILD ABUSE – MANDATED REPORTERS

Under Illinois law, Urbana School District #116 employees are mandated reporters of suspected child abuse or neglect. If an employee has reasonable cause to suspect that a child has been abused or neglected, they are advised to call the DCFS child abuse hotline. The hotline worker will determine if the information given by the reporter meets the legal requirements to initiate an investigation.

SEX OFFENDER REGISTRATION ACT

Public Act 94-0994 – Passed by the State of Illinois General Assembly – 94th Session This public law amends the Sex Offender Registration Act and requires school districts to notify the parents of children attending the school during school registration or during parent- teacher conferences that information about sex offenders is available to the public. The web- site for the Illinois Sex Offender Registry is: http://www.isp.state.il.us/sor/. Click on "I Agree" at the bottom of the page and then you are provided with the search page. To view a map of registered sex offenders, please go to: http://www.familywatchdog.us/.

HIGHLY QUALIFIED STAFF

The "No Child Left Behind Act" of 2000 and the Illinois State Board of Education require that all certified and non-certified staff employees of public school districts require a "Highly Qualified" status. Any parent and/or guardian may request a teacher(s) highly qualified status by contacting the following department in writing:

Angi Franklin, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources Urbana School District #116 1101 East University Ave., Suite B Urbana, Illinois 61802

STUDENT FORMS TO BE REVIEWED ANNUALLY

The Publicity & Photo Release Form, Internet Acceptable Use Form and Bus Rules and Expectations should be reviewed annually by parents. These forms are given to parents once when the child registers in the district or if they change buildings. See page 72-75 of this handbook for a sample. If for any reason you would like to change your original response to these forms, please contact your child's school for a new form.



URBANA SCHOOL DISTRICT 116 PUBLICITY AND PHOTO RELEASE FORM SCHOOL

Urbana School District 116 is making a concentrated effort to promote the positive activities, honors, and work of our staff and students. This includes working with the local newspapers, radio, and television stations and also developing our own publications. These publications include information, likenesses, and images, which may appear on the district website as well as in other publications.

As we go about this project there will be opportunities for various students to be interviewed and/or photographed and identified by name and classroom or school. However, we understand that some parents may request that we do not identify their child(ren). Please fill out the form below to inform us of your wishes regarding publicity. Please note, however, that your child's image or likeness may appear in occasional candid photos without any type of name identification and the use of these candid photos of your child is permissible. This photo release form does not apply to photographs taken during extra-curricular activities. Students who attend extra-curricular activities forfeit their rights to retain authority over the publication of photos taken.

Student Name	Grade
Parent/Guardian Name	
I give permission for my child to be interview photographed/filmed for use in district public limited to, publication via website or other te videos, newspapers, radio, or television.	cations, including, but not
I request that you do not interview or photog	raph my child.
Parent/Guardian Signature	
Date	

If we do not receive this form back, we will assume that you do not wish for your child to be interviewed or photographed. This form will be kept on file at your child's school. If a situation arises that may change your child's status regarding publicity, please notify the Main Office of your child's school in writing as soon as possible. New photo release forms will not be required each school year.

Users Agreement and Parent Permission Form for Internet and Email Access (IAUP)

As a user of the Urbana School District #116 computer network, I hereby agree to comply with the above stated rules - utilizing and communicating over the network in a responsible fashion while honoring all relevant laws and restrictions.

Corresponding School Board Policy: BP 7.6.235 Student Access to Electronic Networks
Name (Please Print)
Student Signature
Date
As a parent or legal guardian of the minor student signing above, I grant permission for my son or daughter to access networked computer services such as electronic mail and the Internet.
I understand that individuals and families may be held liable for violations. I understand that some materials on the Internet may be objectionable, but I accept responsibility for guidance of Internet use setting and conveying standards for my daughter or son to follow when selecting, sharing or exploring information. If I want to revoke this permission, I need to send a written request to the principal of my student's school.
As a parent or legal guardian of the minor student signing above, I do NOT grant permission for my son or daughter to access networked computer services such as electronic mail and the Internet.
Parent Signature
Date

BUS RULES AND EXPECTATIONS

A safe, orderly, and respectful environment for everyone is the expectation on the school bus. Whenever students are riding a school bus, whether on a regular route each day or on a field trip, they are responsible to follow these rules. Parents are urged to encourage good bus riding habits so that the driver may direct his or her attention to the surrounding traffic and to safe loading and unloading procedures.

- 1. To ensure safety, the driver must be totally in charge. Students must respond promptly to instructions given.
- 2. Students must get completely quiet when the bus stops at railroad tracks.
- 3. Animals, oversized objects, glass containers, or any inappropriate materials (i.e. tobacco and related material, alcohol, and other prohibited items) are not allowed on the bus, as designated by School Board Policy.
- 4. Eating and drinking while on the bus is not allowed, as a step to prevent choking. All food and drinks should be stored away in closed containers or packages during the bus ride.
- 5. Students must observe classroom and school-wide expectations as covered by the Student Handbook. Ordinary conversation is permitted. Horseplay, unruly behavior, fighting, abusive and obscene language or gestures are unacceptable. Kicking, hitting, pushing, spitting, yelling or screaming, littering or other inappropriate behaviors are forbidden on the bus, just as they are at school or on the school grounds.
- 6. Students must keep feet, backpacks, book bags and other items within the seating area at all times. The aisles and stairwell must be clear of items and objects at all times.
- 7. All body parts must be kept inside the bus window at all times.
- 8. Students must remain seated in the same seat facing forward until they are dropped off at their bus stops. Moving about the bus while it is in motion is unsafe and unacceptable. A student must move out of a seat promptly if requested to do so by the driver or monitor.
- 9. If a student causes damage to the bus, parents will be expected to pay for that damage.
- 10. Regular schedules must be observed. The bus will not wait for tardy students. Students must be at the bus stop 5 minutes before the scheduled pick up time.
- 11. Students should get on and off the bus only at their designated stops.

Date

Student's Name (Printed)

12. Failure to follow these rules	s may result in a range of conse	quences up to and including s	suspension from
transportation.			

Parent's Signature

Date

EARLY CHILDHOOD BUS (FIRST STUDENT) POLICIES

- 1. Bus service is only available within the Urbana School District #116 boundaries.
- 2. Due to insurance purposes, only Urbana School District #116 residents may use the bus. The Urbana School District is not responsible for transporting children who relocate outside of the Urbana School District area mid-year. Those children must find their own transportation to/from school for the remainder of the school year.
- 3. Be at the bus stop 10 minutes before and allow 10 minutes after the scheduled bus time for the bus to arrive. The driver will only wait one minute at each stop. BUS PERSONNEL IS NOT ALLOWED TO LEAVE THE BUS OR ALLOWED TO HONK THE HORN.
- 4. An authorized adult must be at home and present a valid picture ID to the bus personnel to get a child off the bus. If the adult does not have an ID or is not on the authorized list, the child will be returned to the UECS office and need to be picked up at school.
- 5. If you know that you have missed your child's bus drop-off time, please call the bus lot (344-4586) to verify that your child is returning to the Early Childhood office. At that time, you will need to inform the Early Childhood office of your pick-up arrangements.
- 6. Call the bus lot office (344-4586) if your child is sick or does not need bus service. The bus lot opens at 7:00 AM. Please call before 8:00 AM for the morning sessions and before 11:00 AM for the afternoon sessions.
- 7. While drop off sites may be at different Urbana locations for arrival and dismissal times, (for example, picked up at home each morning, but dropped off at the babysitter's address afterschool) children must be picked up and/or dropped off at the same location each school day. Daily changes in address for pick up/delivery cannot be made. If you need to make a long-term change in the bus pick-up and drop-off, please give 4 days notice. For changes, please call the Early Childhood Program office (217-384-3616). ONLY 3 BUS CHANGES PER CHILD DURING THE SCHOOL YEAR ARE PERMITTED.
- 8. Children who are tantruming and unsafe may be kept at school rather than put on the bus. The school will call the parent to come and pick up the child and discuss the situation.

^{*}For questions regarding bus transportation, call First Student Bus Company at 344-4586.

DATE	DAY	EVENT & DETAILs	
August 14-15	MonTues.	Institute Days – No School for Students	
August 16	Wednesday	No UECS Student Attendance-Family Conferences/Home Visits ½ of Kindergarten Students Attend, All of Grades 1-5, Grade 6 and Grade 9 Students in Attendance No School for Grades 7, 8, and 10-12	
August 17	Thursday	No UECS Student Attendance-Family Conferences/Home Visits, other ½ of Kindergarten Students Attend	
August 18	Friday	All Students EC-12 in Attendance	
September 4	Monday	Labor Day – No School	
September 25	Monday	Staff Development Day – No School Grades EC-5, Early Dismissal: UMS @ 1:15 and UHS @ 12:26	
October 13	Friday	No UECS Student Attendance-Assessment and Portfolio Writing End of 1st Quarter (42 Student Attendance Days)	
October 16-20	MonFri.	Fall Break – No School	
October 26	Thursday	Student Led Family-Teacher Conference Night at Each School ~ Conference Hours: 4:00 - 8:00 pm	
October 27	Friday	Student Led Family-Teacher Conference Morning at Each School ~ Conference Hours: 8:00 - 11:00 am No school for students	
November 10	Friday	Staff Development Day – No School Grades EC-5, Early Dismissal: UMS @ 1:15 and UHS @ 12:26	
November 22-24	WedFri.	Thanksgiving Break – No School	
December 19	Tuesday	End of 2nd Quarter (39 Student Attendance Days) & End of 1st Semester (81 Student Attendance Days) Winter Break Begins at Close of School Day for Students	
December 20	Wednesday	Institute Day and Semester Planning – No School for Students	
January 4	Thursday	No UECS Student Attendance-Family Conferences/Home Visits School Resumes at Regular Time(s)	
January 15	Monday	Martin Luther King Jr. Day – No School	
February 9	Friday	No UECS Student Attendance-Assessment and Portfolio Writing	
February 15	Thursday	Staff Development Day – No School Grades EC-5, Early Dismissal UMS @ 1:15 and UHS @ 12:26	
February 16	Friday	Institute Day – No School for Students	
February 19	Monday	Presidents' Day – No School	
March 8	Friday	End of 3rd Quarter (44 Student Attendance Days)	
March 11-March 15	MonFri.	Spring Break – No School	
March 28	Thursday	No UECS Student attendance-Family Conferences/Home Visits Student Led Family-Teacher Conference Night at Each School ~ Conference Hours: 4:00 - 8:00 pm	
March 29	Friday	Student Led Family-Teacher Conference Morning at Each School ~ Conference Hours: 8:00 - 11:00 am No school for students	
April 19	Friday	Staff Development Day – No School Grades EC-5, Early Dismissal: UMS @ 1:15 and UHS @ 12:26	
April 22	Monday	Spring Holiday – No School	
May 27	Monday	Memorial Day – No School	

May 29	Wednesday	No UECS Student Attendance-Assessment and Portfolio Writing Half-Day Inservice – Early Dismissal: Elementary @ 12:45, UMS @ 1:15, and UHS @ 12:26 • An Early Dismissal will be the last official day of school ~ Date subject to change if use of Winter Weather Days End of 4th Quarter (51 Student Attendance Days) & End of 2nd Semester (95 Student Attendance Days)
June 5	Wednesday	Last Official School Day If 5 Winter Weather Days Used

Analysis of 2023-2024 Calendar by Quarters

October 13, 2023 Friday End of First Quarter

42 Student Attendance Days +

2 Institute Days 44 Days

December 20, 2023 Wednesday End of Second Quarter and First Semester

39 Student Attendance Days 40 Days

1 Institute Day

March 8, 2024 Friday End of Third Quarter

44 Student Attendance Days +

1 Institute Days 45 Days

June 5, 2024 Wednesday End of Fourth Quarter and Second Semester

51 Student Attendance Days + 51 Days

5 Winter Weather Make-Up Days 5 Days

End of School Year - 185 days

176 Student Attendance Days +

4 Institute Days + (3 Institute Days + Winter Institute)

5 Winter Weather Make-Up Days

Month	Student Attendance Days	Institute Days	Total Days
August	12	2	14
September	20	0	20
October	17	0	17
November	19	0	19
December	13	1	14
January	19	0	19
February	19	1	20
March	16	0	16
April	21	0	21
May	20	0	20
TOTAL	176	4	180 (+ 5 Winter) = 185